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Financial Highlights
Bt % i &

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FORTHE YEAR AR MIEHEZ o2 & XK

2013
—E—=F

.J PRC including Hong Kong $ B (BiE&E#) 0.27%
. Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A E i #h & 44.57%
. North and South America 1t 3 i &2 B3 3£ M 42.84%

.' Europe B 12.32%

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FORTHE YEAR AR IEXKRE Do L X5

2013
—E—=F

Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

.J BUERHERBRRBER 27.73%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
HERHELRHEAER 72.27%
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PRC including Hong Kong & (BEE#) 8.32%
Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A H fi 5t [& 30.80%
North and South America 1t 3 M K B =M 53.13%
Europe B 7.75%

2012
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Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

HERHERBRRFBER 32.75%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
HERHEEZBRAER 51.14%

Manufacture and sale of data media products

HERHERBEERER 11.27%

Distribution of data media products

DHBBREER 4.84%



FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS
HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of AMCO
United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated:

Financial Highlights
Bt B i =

MBREEREHRE

TREINEFERBROF (KRR ]) REMK
BRR (5l [ AEE]DRITFERBZET
MIEER:

OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2013 2012
REEZ (THT) —E-—= —T——fF
Turnover BER 89,006 157,855
Loss for the year FEEE (74,613) (44,650)
FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2013 2012
BEARR (FHBT) —E—=f& -
(Capital deficiency)/equity attributable to RARVHER AEL (BREH)

owners of the Company S (36,673) 37,552
Total assets BEE 46,499 112,856
Net (liabilities)/assets (8fE) EEFE (36,673) 37,552
Net (liabilities)/assets value per share after R h & pH&

share consolidation (HK cents) Bl (8E) AEFE B (4.2) 4.3
FINANCIAL STATISTICS 2013 2012
B i G =t —EB-=F —E—=
Current ratio’ i Eh B 0.4 0.8
Total debt to total assets ratio? MRE TS AR A B LY 2 1.8 0.7
Return on total assets (%)3 488 B B3R K (%)3 (160.5) (39.6)
Return on sales (%) 5 B 3K (%)* (83.8) (41.9)
Loss per share from continuing and REBBEREHRIEKEER 2

discontinued operations (HK cents) TR EE (L)

Basic HAK (8.5) (5.1)

Diluted #E N/A T M N/A 38

Notes: B E

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total
indebtedness by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by
total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the continuing operation’s loss
for the year by turnover.

1. RBEEDUARBDEERARDEETE -
2. HREBHAEELXTDNEEBRAEEE

.
= =
al = °

3. BREEMRENAFEERRABEESS-

4. SRR TS A £ T 2 AR DL
ERBHE -



Corporate Information
2w & R

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

YIP Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and Managing Director)
LEUNG Mei Han

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEUNG Ka Kui, Johnny
CHAN Kam Kwan, Jason
LAU Man Tak

COMPANY SECRETARY

CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

LEUNG Mei Han
CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1005, 10/F

Tower lll, Enterprise Square
9 Sheung Yuet Road
Kowloon Bay

Kowloon

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(with effect from 31 March 2014)

WEBSITE

www.amco-united.com
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Chairman’s Statement

F i

Economic recovery and company restructure made 2013 an extraordinary
year for the Group. Though uneven and patchy, the United States
and European economic recovery was taking shape in the year under
review. To grasp this opportunity, the Group continued its restructuring,
successfully discontinued certain operations and allocated resources
among core business segments. However, our efforts were hindered
by a series of operating challenges common to other manufacturers in
China. The labour shortage issue and the increase in labour and material
costs compounded by the appreciation of the Renminbi intensified the

operating pressures on the business.

These increased costs were originally expected to be absorbed by the
increase in production scale, attributable to the favorable sales forecasts
of certain end-products from customers. However, the actual orders
decreased during the year due to various factors including unfavorable
market response to the customers’ end-products, in return led to an
excess of production capacity in our factory. As a result, the Group
recorded a decline in gross profit margin and net loss attributable to the

shareholder of the Company for the year ended 2013.

In light of the current difficult business environment, the Group has
focused on formulating business strategies and implemented stringent
cost control measures to offset rising operating cost pressures. The Group
is also considering various kinds of operation models so as to have better

utilization of resources.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2013
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LOOKING AHEAD

Rising production cost will remain the major challenge to our
performance. To cope with the challenging operational environment in
our sector and sharpen our competitive position, the Group is pursuing
and evaluating the feasibility of providing integrated services to our
customers from design all the way to finish product. Also, we are in
process of evaluating the distribution channel and market function for

customer products, as well as developing our own products and brands.

The Group will continue to seek opportunities for business integration
both with new and within our existing sectors, in order to broaden and

improve our sustainable profitability in the future.

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE VSR

RESULTS

In 2013, the unstable global economic and decline in the demand of
customers’ end products have caused a sluggish business performance
of the Group. The Group's continuing operations recorded a turnover
of HK$89 million, representing a decrease of HK$43.4 million or 32.8%
as compared to that of last financial year. The Group suffered from the
pressure of tough manufacturing conditions, and gross profit margin
decreased from 22.6% as recorded in previous year to 15.7% for the
year. The erosion in gross profit margin was caused by increased labor
and overhead costs, though our ongoing cost reduction programs and
sales price adjustments to customers offset part of the impact. The loss
from continuing operations for the year of 2013 was HK$74.6 million,
an increase of HK$19.1 million or 34.4%, as compared to the loss of
HK$55.5 million last year. The loss increased was mainly attributable to
the net effect of (i) a decline in turnover and gross profit margin of the
Group; (i) HK$4.4 million gain on deregistration of certain subsidiaries;
(iii) impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
other deposits, prepayments and other receivables of HK$5.7 million,
HK$34.1 million and HK$1.1 million respectively; and (iv) HK$1.6 million
loss in fair value of the outstanding convertible notes while HK$4.9

million gain in fair value was recorded in previous year.

During the past two years, the Company has made strategic decision
to restructure and streamline the business operations as so to focus its
resources in developing on the businesses of manufacture and sale of
medical devices products and manufacture and sale of plastic moulding
products. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
discontinued operating activities while a gain from discontinued
operations in manufacture and sale of data media products and

distribution of data media products was HK$10.9 million in 2012.

The Group's overall loss attributable to owners was HK$74.6 million
(2012: HK$44.7 million) for the year ended 2013, representing an

increase of HK$29.9 million or 67.1% as compared to last year.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

For the year ended 2013, the manufacture and sale of medical devices
products segment recorded revenue of approximately of HK$24.7
million, accounted for 27.7% (2012: 39.0%) of the Group’s turnover.
This business segment represented a decrease of HK$27.0 million or
52.2% from HK$51.7 million in the previous year, which was primarily
due to the decrease in sales orders from its key customer in America
as a result of the weaken demand of customer’s end products. The
Company relies on production schedules provided by its customers to
plan and implement production. The sudden drop in the customer orders
was mainly due to the recall of one of ultimate customers’ products,
which had created production inefficiency for a certain period before
proper capacity adjustments. Hence, segment’s performance was turning
from gain of HK$2.7 million in 2012 to loss of HK$6.0 million in the
current year, which was the result of increased production cost and
administrative expenses. An impairment loss on goodwill of HK$34.1

million (2012: HK$21.5 million) has been recognised in the current year.

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products

The segment of manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products was
still the major contributor of the Group’s turnover, which amounted
to HK$64.3 million (2012: HK$80.7 million) and accounted for 72.3%
(2012: 61.0%) for the year under review. Owing to a sluggish business
environment in the global market which caused the customers to be
more conservative in placing order, the segment revenue had recorded
a year-on-year decrease of 20.3%. As operating in highly competitive
markets with a number of other manufacturers that produce and sell
similar products, we primarily compete on the basis of capability, product
quality, cost, and delivery to maintain market share. Under this global
environment of severe competition, the segmental loss was further
deteriorated from loss of HK$7.4 million in last year to loss of HK$9.7
million in 2013 due to increased production cost. As at 31 December
2013, the management had assessed the recoverable amount of this
business segment and determined that an impairment loss of HK$5.7
million in respect of property, plant and equipment was recognised in

2013.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B8 w7 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital and debt structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's consolidated net liabilities was
approximately HK$36.7 million, representing approximately HK$74.2
million, equivalent to a 197.7%, decrease compared with that of 31

December 2012, primarily arising from the operating loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has 875,823,986 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) in issue. On 26 March 2013, the Company

effected the capital reorganisation, which included:

share consolidation of every ten (10) issued shares of par value
HK$0.01 each into one (1) issued consolidated share of par value

HK$0.10 each;

ii. capital reduction of the par value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid-

up capital on each issued consolidated share; and

iii.  cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit of the share

premium account of the Company.

As a result of the capital reorganisation, there were approximately
HK$78.8 million from share capital and HK$223.8 million from share
premium credited to the contributed surplus account of the Company

and was applied for setting off the accumulated loss of the Company.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has outstanding convertible
notes issued as partial consideration for the acquisition of the Titron
Group as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular dated 11
August 2011 and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
valued at approximately HK$23.2 million, of which, approximately
HK$7.1 million was classified as non-current liabilities due to the

conversion conditions applicable to their convertibility.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total borrowings from financial
institutions amounted to HK$16.3 million, representing an increase
by HK$6.3 million from HK$10 million as at 31 December 2012. Over
99.9% of the borrowings were payable within one year. Since most
of the borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the risk
of currency exposure was minimal. The Group’s total cash and bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$4.6 million at 31 December
2013, which was about HK$5.6 million lower than the position of

HK$10.2 million at 31 December 2012.

The Group recorded a negative figure on total equity and the gearing
ratio was not applicable for the year while that of 31 December 2012
was 95.0%. The ratio was determined by bank and other borrowings,
amount to a director, obligations under finance leases and convertible

notes over shareholders’ equity.

Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's current ratio and quick ratio were
0.4 and 0.3 respectively (31 December 2012: 0.8 and 0.7 respectively).
Inventory turnover on sales of continuing operations increased to 30
days which is 5 days longer than that at 31 December 2012. Receivable
turnover of continuing operations was 58 days while it was 57 days at 31

December 2012.

The Group has incurred a loss of HK$74.6 million and at the end of the
reporting period, the Group has net current liabilities of HK$47.4 million
and a capital deficiency of HK$36.7 million.

Notwithstanding these conditions the going concern basis has been
adopted on the basis that a Director and a certain related party have
undertaken not to demand for repayment of debts due to them at 31
December 2013 of HK$12.2 million and HK$7.5 million respectively, until
such time repayment will not affect the Company’s ability to repay other

creditors in the normal course of business.

Management Discussion and Analysis

RYETIY

R_E—=ZF+_-_A=+—RH KE@KAH
S EEIE 2 815 E 516,300,000 L  R_F
—Z—F+=ZA=+—H 210,000,000 7T & N
6,300,000 7T - B {6 & P B 899.9% R X —
FREZ - ARAIAEEHUBTE &
RBREE R-ZT—=F+=-_A=+—8 %&
E 2R e RIRTTHE R HEH 4 34,600,000 7T
H-_T——F+=-A=+—H2Z10,200,000%
T, 4 495,600,0005 TT ©

AEBRZVBESBAY WEEARBLEY
TEARAEE MR_E——F+=-A=+—
HZEEAMBHEAAI5.0% ° &L R THARTT
REMEES BNEERE BAHERERA]
BRREERUAR RS E -

o

EEETRARBES
RZE—=F+_A=+—H AEKEZRILL
ERBELEHF B4R ZE—ZF+=

+—H:581B0.8K0.7) - FHELEEK Y
FEIHERAEMEE30R  ER_T——_F+=
R=1+—BIENMNSK - HEEE X 2 RURT
AEHASSK MR-_E——F+-A=+—H
A5TR e

4

Jn

N &= B E 4 E5 874,600,000 7T 0 R R & H
K AEEESBRE B EFEE47,400,000%8 T &
& K E54136,700,00058 JT °

BEHR LRER ARRTEAFECER
K RAR—ZEFRETHEATESEX
ETEBEREEN T —=F+_-_A=+—H
B8 2 &5 512,200,000 7T K 7,500,0005%
T EEEBEBRETERNEANTRBEE
BB REMEEABRZEN AL

SERERERA
2013 §

Hal

11



Management Discussion and Analysis

B8 w7 B

On 24 March 2014, the Company had signed two placing agreements,
which secured a minimum capital injection of HK$40 million by April
2014. It is believed that these fund raising exercises will provide an
opportunity to broaden the shareholders and strengthened the capital
base and working capital of the Group. Further details of the placing
agreements in relation to the placings had been disclosed in an

announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2014.

Also, as at 31 December 2013, included in the current liabilities is the
current portion of convertible notes of HK$16.1 million. The convertible
notes were issued pursuant to the acquisition of the Titron Group.
Under the terms of the convertible note agreement, these notes must be
converted into shares of the Company at the agreed (fixed) conversion
price. Accordingly, the settlement of these convertible notes will not have

any adverse cash flow impact to the Group.

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has pledged its assets with an
aggregate net book value of HK$3.7 million (31 December 2012: HK$4.0
million) to secure bank facilities granted and finance lease obligations.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2013.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 150 (31 December 2012: 217). The remuneration
packages of the Group’s employees are mainly based on their
performance and experience, taking into account the current industry
practices. Remuneration packages of employees include salaries,
insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme. Other
employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Wai Lun, Alvin, aged 51, joined the Company as Executive
Director on 31 July 2009 and was first re-designated as Deputy Chairman
and Deputy Managing Director of the Company on 2 March 2010, and
subsequently re-designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 29 October 2010. Mr. Yip, assuming leadership role of the
Board, is responsible for formulating strategic plans, directing business
development and overseeing daily management of the Group. Mr. Yip
has over 25 years of experience as entrepreneur and key management
in a variety of business, ranging from manufacturing and technology to
transportation. He has also led in the formation and management of a
number of joint ventures and partnership arrangement with multinational

companies.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 55, joined the Company as Executive
Director on 1 January 2012 and is responsible for overseeing all
corporate governance matters, leading in corporate finance functions
and participating in business development projects of the Group. Ms.
Leung graduated from the University of Queensland, Australia, with
a bachelor degree in Commerce in February 1982. She is a fellow
member of CPA Australia. Ms. Leung has extensive experience in
accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms. Leung
has been providing corporate finance advisory services for securities and

international merger and acquisition transactions.

Ms. Leung is an independent non-executive director of Yue Da Mining
Holdings Limited, Bossini International Holdings Limited and Four Seas
Mercantile Holdings Limited, which are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. She was an independent non-executive
director of Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (presently known as China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited) for the period from
May 2011 to May 2013, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

EHELRERERNEG

5=
HITES

ERfMAE I+ R_ZFAFLA
E+—Ebﬂ)\$@ﬁ??%$ﬂﬁ%$'%&Ef‘ﬁﬁé\:;ﬁ
—EF-_A_RAEARAARFRRTIEREES
e YHEER—_T-EFTA-TABRE
RARBEIFEREFHLE -EARLETFEE
FeAt ARFIERBAS HEXBERRK
ERAEEZARER RAERSEITE OF
ERERMBENEERSTR)IRAERA_TRF

ERERRRFBEBABZER -BTEEE
HEEARKILEESHAECERABR
B

RERzLT A t+AR R-_FT——F—H—H
MARRRBRITES AREEMALEER

$E‘§§%¢%rﬁﬂ§ﬂﬁkﬁﬁ I%EEZK;%Z%%
BRIERB - RRITR—NNZF_AEER
BETRAE BUGEES LT 20 - RRMM
BHMAGCERGE RULREH &
CEREREREERELYELR Rt —H
REFURBEREHRBEEBEZSRECERE
B RR -

B

R RINEBEZRRAR AR ERMERERE
SEERAARMNMNERBR AR Z BN
TES FRARHEIRBZAERLET-BZ2F
——FRARE_Z-—=FRAHPH BRAAF
FAEREBER AT (REPREGRRRIZERER
DR ERGOREZFER L) 2 B IEHRTT
BE-

ERERERAA
2013 §

Hal

13



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EHREREHAE A

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Ka Kui, Johnny, aged 56, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 January 2000 and holds a
Bachelor of Laws of the University of London. Mr. Leung is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, England & Wales and Singapore, and is a Notary
Public and China Appointed Attesting Officer. He has over 27 years of
experience in legal field and is the senior partner of Messrs. Johnny K.K.

Leung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.

Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Celestial
Asia Securities Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Phoenitron Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited for the period from September 2009 to September
2010, the shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kam Kwan, Jason, aged 40, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director on 11 August 2004 and holds a
Bachelor Degree in Commerce from University of British Columbia,
Canada and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 10 years’ experience in accounting and
corporate finance. He has been working in a big-4 multinational audit
firm and served a number of listed corporations. Mr. Chan is currently
an executive director and the company secretary of Brockman Mining
Limited, and the company secretary of China WindPower Group Limited
and Frontier Services Group Limited (formerly known as DVN (Holdings)
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was an executive director of China WindPower Group
Limited for the period from December 2006 to January 2014, the shares

of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LAU Man Tak, aged 44, joined the Company as Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 October 2010 and holds a bachelor degree
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate finance, accounting and
auditing. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Lau is currently an executive director, the chairman,
compliance officer and the substantial shareholder of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Climax International Company
Limited, Kingston Financial Group Limited, Kong Sun Holdings Limited
and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, which are companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an executive director of
China Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited (presently known
as China Sandi Holdings Limited) for the period from April 2010 to
September 2012, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EHREREHAE A

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LYE Khay Fong, aged 73 was the Chairman of the Group engaged
in business of OEM/ODM manufacturing and trading of consumer
products and medical devices. In December 2013, Mr. Lye retired
from the board positions of the Titron Group. However, the Group
will continue to benefit from his experience through his continuing
participation in the operations of the Group as a senior member of the
operational management team. Mr. Lye holds a Master Degree, and
professional engineering qualifications. He has an extensive corporate
track record, having held top management positions in corporations
in Asia, and worked for the Group since 2011. He is currently the Vice
Chairman of the Singapore Chamber of Commerce (Hong Kong) and an
Executive Committee member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association

(Hong Kong).

Ms. YAM Wai Wah, Jenny, aged 43, is the Group Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. Yam is responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting, financial management and internal control of the Group. Ms.
Yam holds a Bachelor Degree of Accounting and Financial Analysis from
the University of Warwick in United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Yam has over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management and previously worked in an auditing firm and
several listed multinational corporations. She joined the Group in July

2012.

Mr. WONG, Danny Yick Chuen, aged 46, is the Assistant General
Manager of a group subsidiary. He is responsible for managing projects
in the manufacture and sale of medical products segment. Mr. Wong
graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada, with a Bachelor

Degree in Applied Science in 1993. He joined the Group in 1994.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company
has always recognized the importance of shareholders’ accountability and
transparency and is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) throughout the year ended
31 December 2013 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain deviations

disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the

leadership of the Managing Director.

As at 31 December, 2013, the Board comprised two Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company) and Ms. Leung Mei Han; and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Kai Kui, Johnny, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason

and Mr. Lau Man Tak.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
PERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, the Board held four regular meetings and meets as and
when required. The Company Secretary assisted the Chairman and the
Executive Directors in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director
was able to request inclusion of items in the agenda. All such meetings
were convened in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Under
code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity
to attend. During the year, one out of the four Board meetings was
convened with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members
to react timely and make expeditious decisions in respect of general
business update which was significant in nature. As a result, the Board
meeting was held with a shorter notice period than required with the
consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavor to meet
the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in the future.
Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to the Directors
normally three days in advance of Board meetings or such period
accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman
of the Board held a meeting with the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of another Executive Director during the

year.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man
Tak pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent. The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors in particular, Mr. Leung
Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, who have served the
Board for more than nine years. Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan
Kam Kwan, Jason do not have any management role in the Company
and its subsidiaries since their appointment. They have expressed their
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and have been
giving objective views to the Company. There is no evidence that length
of tenure is having an unfavourable influence on the independence.
The Board is satisfied that, as well proven by the valuable independent
judgement and advice given by Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan
Kam Kwan, Jason over the years’ Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan
Kam Kwan, Jason have the required character, integrity, independence
and experience to perform the role of an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Board is not aware of any circumstances that might
influence Mr. Leung Kai Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason in
exercising their independent judgement and therefore believes they are

still independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 13 to 15 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of
the Directors shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three

years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEEEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his/her position,
and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/

her duties effectively and efficiently.

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, the
annual general meeting (“AGM") held on 31 May 2013 and the special
general meeting (“SGM") held on 25 March 2013 is as follow:

EEgNBCHAEBME 25 Kk HEME
R/MBER - EEG o HEERTHRRESS
ZEEBRRZBIE HBB=0—2KEHE
TIEMITERMAK

MBEEEHRAEEEHERATEERRES -

BHRTEFHARBREARREERR BBE

HBUYABREERMETERE -
REEHFEEEEER R _FT—=F1A

ZT-BRETZERRAFAE ([RRBFK
EDER-Z—=F=A-+THHBTZER
%EW(@(FHQ?%EUK@J)Z’%;‘RZIDT:

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/EEKEE
Board

Meetings AGM SGM
Executive Directors HITES E=Zgg BRERBFEAE BREAE
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and & fmELE 4/4 1/1 0/1

Managing Director) (FEREFLHAE)

Ms. Leung Mei Han ZEMI L 4/4 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny R AE 4/4 11 0/1
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason R 87 34 5T A& 3/4 11 11
Mr. Lau Man Tak B EEAsE 4/4 11 11

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

20 Annual Report 2013



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

According to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny, an
Independent Non-executive Director, was unable to attend the SGM due

to his personal commitment.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training
courses or workshops or reading materials relevant to his/her professional

and/or duties as Director.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2013 is summarized below:
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Professional Body materials
EERBREM
RAZHER
Directors 2= mE BEER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin HEEBELE - v/
Ms. Leung Mei Han REMEZ T v -
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITESE
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny RREFHE v =
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason Bk &8 3 5 A v v
Mr. Lau Man Tak B ELEAE v/ v
All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional 15 - BN

development and they are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEEBRYE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

() To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution
of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director to be
the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during the year
ended 31 December 2013. The Board considers that it would be in the
best interest of its shareholders that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong and
delicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement effective
measures to improve shareholders’ value. In this light, the Company has
maintained Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company. The Company will review the current structure

when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
SR EEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
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The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of FR HIMEZESXKEREKE Z LR FE B R
each member during the year are as follows: ™
Attended/

Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors VHHITES HE AEERLE
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny (Chairman) RREVGE (FE) 11
Mr. Lau Man Tak B EE A 1/1
Executive Director HITES
Ms. Leung Mei Han REBZ L 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 December 2013. As from
1 October 2013, the Director’s emolument of Ms. Leung Mei Han was

adjusted from HK$300,000 to HK$25,000 per month.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms

of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

In August 2013, on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee,
the Board has approved and adopted the revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee in light of the amendments of the
CG Code, and the same are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Board also approved the adoption
of the Board Diversity Policy. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Nomination Committee held two meetings.

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend

Executive Director HITES HEEEREE

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman) ERmEkE (FE) 2/2

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR &8 1 5T A 2/2

Mr. Lau Man Tak Bk 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REZEE (#

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following SR - IEHZZEEETUATHRE:
duties:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and compositions of the Board; (a) BEUEFE2EE  AHRANK:

(b) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive (b) GBI IFHITEE 2B

Directors;

(c) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for (¢) MAE T =ZFRFFEFAE L2EER
re-election at the Annual General Meeting for 2013; and ZRAESENESESRHEER

(d) recommended to the Board on the adoption of the revised terms (d) HMIRMIRZRZE S EETHRESELE

of reference of the Nomination Committee and the Board Diversity EENELZTIBRRAESTSREE
Policy.
AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZERS

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of ARAFDRVYEZZES WOV TFEHEE
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available #E&E - FBXEZ 82 2 BESERE T MAR
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. B4k I o

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the BXZECBERMERAEET  HHERK
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and B RAHNELHE WRNESSREEZRLE

providing advice and comments to the Board. R

H=BBIFERITESRERMESE
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman), Mr. Leung Ka  (F/&) - BRHEER B SVEEEHK - FR -
Kui, Johnny and Mr. Lau Man Tak. During the year, the Audit Committee  Fix % B/17

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive HEikELZE @

=
=

T=RE#%

I]]]D

\

held three meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES HE AEKREE
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman) PREBIRSC A (E/E) 3/3
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny RREE A 3/3
Mr. Lau Man Tak Bk 3/3
During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties: FAN - BREESERITUTEE:

(a)

reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2013, with

recommendations to the Board for approval;

reviewed report on internal control system covering financial,

operational, procedural compliance and risk management functions;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’'s re-

appointment and remuneration.

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason and Mr. Lau Man Tak, members of the Audit

Committee, possess relevant professional qualifications and financial

management expertise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the

Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group was charged by the auditor, BDO Limited, the following

auditing and non-auditing services during the year:

BET &

FRAREXNZBMBB L ERRGME
BRARARZZBEGFZBRBELT

Fees paid/payable

gt/ ENER

HK$'000

Services rendered R KR FHET
Audit services ZH R 730
Non-audit services IEZHARTE 142

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 and for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The accounts for the reporting year have been prepared
on a going concern basis, having regard to the financial supports and
measures as more particularly described in note 3(b) to the consolidated

financial statements.

The responsibility of the auditor with respect to these financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 49

to 51 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievements of the Group's objectives.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and agreed that there are
processes in place for identifying, evaluating and managing reasonably
the material business risks faced by the Group. Such processes are

incorporated in all businesses of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with all
shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company is a valuable
avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue with shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, and members of Board
committees attended the annual general meeting held on 31 May 2013
to answer any question. In addition, the Company convened a special
general meeting during the year to approve the capital reorganisation,
the change of the board lot size and the subscription for new shares
under specific mandate and the meeting was convened in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the corporate governance procedures of the
Company. These provided further opportunities for shareholders to

comment and vote on specific transactions.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are dispatched to
shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

shareholders.

All the shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear business
days’ notice before the date of the annual general meetings and at least

10 clear business days’ notice for all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of shareholders meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT
Procedures for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company to

request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1005,
10/F, Tower lll, Enterprise Square, 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with

effect from 31 March 2014).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(the “Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1005,
10/F, Tower lll, Enterprise Square, 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with
effect from 31 March 2014). The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders
concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79

and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring director for
election as a director at a general meeting, the shareholder should follow
the “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1005, 10/F, Tower llI

Enterprise Square

9 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay

Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2155 1688

Facsimile: (852) 2155 9668

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external service
provider. Ms. Yam Wai Wah, Jenny, the Group Financial Controller of the
Group, is the primary contact person of the Company with the external

service provider.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric,
the Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December

2013.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company's constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2013.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

32 Annual Report 2013

REER =)
NEESEERREHCER

BRAESAZEETXNEBATREANEES
REE AR

EHRERER QA
EEg REWE
FiBNEE

3EE10M21005F
ESECN
& 5% 1 (852) 2155 1688
{EH : (852) 2155 9668

info@amco-united.com

BEFTRARARIAR EAEFRIENE
e

DNEWE

ARRZ MEBERIINTRBHEEBRING - KK
B BREETEELLRAR R EI RS
HEBZETEBEA-

RIBE ETARANE3. 2916 AR T Z 2RI ERRE
RAEERBE_Z—=F+_"_A=+—HILF
EARABEI TR/ 2 HEEEET -

REEBRE

BE-T-=Ft+-A=+-ALEEN XA
AT ABER G EEAEE-



The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 52

to 54 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EFREWRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company which
is available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2013 and 31

December 2012.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman and Managing Director)
Ms. Leung Mei Han

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason

Mr. Lau Man Tak

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors retiring
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting will be Ms. Leung
Mei Han and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, who being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 14 December
2012, which may be terminated by no less than six months’ notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 14 December 2012, which may be terminated by one month’s
notice in writing served by the Company on the Independent Non-
executive Directors or by instant notice in writing served by the

Independent Non-executive Directors on the Company.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Long positions L3}
1. Share and underlying shares of the Company 1. ZERERGREHEEK G
Number of
Number of underlying
Number of underlying shares Approximate
Ene e shares held under perce.ntage
or held under performance of the issued
Personal Corporate share option incentive share capital
Name of directors Capacity interests interests scheme agreement Total  of the Company
EERYE RERRE REBARED AT
i TERERE BERERE BRTRAZ
£33 2% fHAER RAER RHHE RG#A ast BHEA
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Interest of controlled - 146,288,922 - 660,000,000 806,288,922 92.06%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2)
ERMEE REHRR L ER (frzE1) (MzE2)
Ms. Leung Mei Han Interest of controlled - 218,116,000 - - 218,116,000 24.90%
corporation (Note 3)
REFRL REHRAR L ER GES)
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny  Beneficial owner 29,000 - 149 - 29,149 0.00%
RREEE ERBERA
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Beneficial owner - - 149 - 149 0.00%
Jason
bt 4 ERBERA
ERERERAR
2013 3k
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

EEREETHRAEREARTAR
HESEERS - HEARORESZ

ERERRE (2

(continued)

Long positions (continued) HRr#)

1. Share and underlying shares of the Company 1. ZXRERGREBERE (&)
(continued)
Notes: i

These shares were held by Almeco United Group Limited as to
145,658,922 and Titron Group Holdings Limited as to 630,000.
Each of Almeco United Group Limited and Titron Group Holdings
Limited was owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as to 100% directly
and 42.5% indirectly. Accordingly, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was
deemed to be interested in these 146,288,922 shares by virtue of
the SFO.

145,658,922 % % 13 }2630,000A% A% {7
7 Al BB Almeco United Group Limited
K Titron Group Holdings Limited$% A ©
Almeco United Group Limited X Titron
Group Holdings Limited? Bl 1 Z (& @ %
EEEREERE100% %42.5% % ©
Hit - RIBFZFRBEGR EREHEE
R BN % 5146,288,922/8% B 15 7
Ao

Pursuant to the performance incentive agreement dated 4 March 2. BEBHA-_ZE——E=FMNBZE
2011 (the “Performance Incentive Agreement”), a maximum HEREBHZE(BAOEBBZE]) LR
number of 6,720,000,000 shares is potentially entitled by Atlas #6,720,000,0008% i% 17 2 & 7€ # &
Medical Limited, which was 50% owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Fi Atlas Medical Limited¥ & - i1 Atlas
and 50% owned by Mr. Lye Khay Fong respectively. Out of these Medical LimitedBl| (i 3£ & f@m 55 & & B2
6,720,000,000 shares, 20,000,000 shares were lapsed according HAFAEEGHBS0%ER -EZE
to the terms of the Performance Incentive Agreement during the 6,720,000,000% (& 7 & 1 1R & B 4y 1%
year ended 31 December 2012. On 26 March 2013, the Company Bh 3% 2 1§ 3 20,000,0000% 8% 15 B 7
effected the Capital Reorganisation, whereupon (among others) HE_Z——_H+-_A=+—HILFE
the number of Shares issuable pursuant to the Performance NEM-R—_FE—=F=A=+,8"
Incentive Agreement was adjusted from 6,700,000,000 shares to AARETRAESR Bt (EPB81E)
670,000,000 shares. Out of these 670,000,000 shares, 10,000,000 AR I B 40 B2 15 3 F) 1T 2 B BB
shares were lapsed according to the terms of the Performance F36,700,000,0000% 38 # 670,000,000
Incentive Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2013. A% o £ 3% 5670,000,0000% i 12 & > 1R
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was deemed to be interested in all these 15 7B 40 528 173 7% 2 183K+ 10,000,0000%
shares by virtue of the SFO. BOERBEE-_ZT—=F+_A=+—
HEFERAER -REBEZFKBER
Pl - EREBEERBRRAEZERN
MR R
These shares were held by Qshare Holding Limited, which was 3. %% #HQshare Holding Limited%f

100% owned by Ms. Leung Mei Han. Accordingly, Ms. Leung Mei
Han was deemed to be interested in these 218,116,000 shares by
virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERESTHRAERAATR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, HEEZERT HERORESFZ
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE ®#ZR XA (#)

COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)
Long positions (continued) HE &)
2. Interest in debenture of the Company 2. RELGEFZE#z
Approximate
percentage of
Amount of total debenture of
Name of director Capacity debenture held Class of debenture the Company
EAQEES
EEHE g4 FEESSE BEHFER BEHHNBEIL
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Beneficial owner HK$14,418,905 Freely transferable and 36.01%

convertible into the

shares of the Company
ERmiL BHEBEAA 14,418,905 T Al HHMEER

A RBRERRRRN

Note: B 5 -

The debenture relates to the convertible notes arising from the acquisition of ~ EH A M BKRM 3SR KRB EREEH
Titron Group as set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. MEAZABRKREEREA-

SHARE OPTIONS BB R

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 31  ANAA ZEREFE 2 EBEREE P BHRE

to the consolidated financial statements. BsE31/ -

ERERERAAE
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Directors’ Report

H
EEGRE
SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BREe
The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options FNRIEBAARZERENEEZE —T—=F1+—
during the year ended 31 December 2013: R=+—BLFERAZEE:
Cancelled/
Date of  Share option  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
share option scheme  at beginning during during during the at end of Exercise Exercise
Name of participants granted category of the year the year the year year the year price period
HK$
(Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3) (Note 3) (Note 3) (Note 3)
BRE LG R REA RERA RER
SRERE REBH 5l i RAT R RERRH RERFTE B3 VS i R AT TR TEH
B
(Bt &2) (BEE3) (P &E3) (MEE3) (PEE3)
Directors
E=
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 25.1.2005 2005 149 - - - 149 1.629 25.1.2005 -
RREELE 24.1.2015
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason 25.1.2005 2005 149 - - - 149 1.629 25.1.2005 -
G 24.1.2015
Mr. Ma Bo Ping (Note 4) 6.5.2011 2011 970,000 = = (970,000) S 2.097 6.5.2011 -
B 4 (fEEd) 5.5.2013
Mr. Zhou Yu Sheng (Note 4) 6.5.2011 2011 970,000 - - (970,000) - 2.097 6.5.2011 -
BRE LA (Hi) 5.5.2013
Total for directors 1,940,298 - - (1,940,000) 298
EROH
Employees 25.1.2005 2005 127 - - (127) - 1.629 25.1.2005 -
&g 24.1.2015
Total for employees 127 - - (127) -
EEAG

Approximate percentage

to total Company'’s shares in
issue at end of the year
ERRARERERTRG
BEZBNEIL

Total under the Company's 1,940,425 - - (1,940,127) 298 0.00%
share option scheme
ARREREF BB T EH
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1. The 2005 and 2011 options were granted under the Company's share
option scheme adopted on 12 June 2004.

2.  The closing price of the Company's shares immediately before 25
January 2005 and 6 May 2011, the dates of grant of 2005 and 2011
options, were HK$0.159 and HK$0.202 respectively.

3. As a result of the Capital Reorganisation effective on 26 March 2013,
the exercise price and number of new shares to be issued under the
outstanding share options were adjusted pursuant to the terms of the

Company'’s share option scheme.

4. Mr. Ma Bo Ping and Mr. Zhou Yu Sheng resigned as executive directors

of the Company on 23 May 2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and none of the Directors
or chief executives, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised

any such right during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a part to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.
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EFREWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “Related

Party Transactions” as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no other contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business, to which the Company, its holding company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the

end of the year or at anytime during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
the Company discloses the following continuing connected transaction
incurred during the year.

On 4 March 2011, the Company, Energy Best Investments Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and Atlas Medical Limited
("Atlas"), entered into the Performance Incentive Agreement (as
amended and restated on 27 July 2011) with the approval of the Board,
pursuant to which it was agreed between the parties that the Company
would make payments to Atlas for services (“Services”, as described
below) provided by Atlas thereunder during the service periods as
referred to in the Performance Incentive Agreement. Atlas is an associate
of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, an Executive Director. More particulars of the
Performance Incentive Agreement were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011 and 27 July 2011

respectively and the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2011.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

40  Annual Report 2013

EERNEECHNzER

RS BREMAMME [BEALTRZ]E
THRERB2Z I BEEEAEEER A
DA AR AR HAERIME A 7=k B RS
RAIART K R F AR RF AT B R
FE BARREFREPERIMEREEX
BRzHMEREH-

BFERERS
BEEBBERXIMERAFES EHHA A
(TEMAA]) ETHAE - AR FEBERFRE
T2 TN ERERS -

RZE-——F=ZANA -KEETgHE XK
A @]~ Energy Best Investments Limited (AA 2
Az 2 A WB A F) RAtlas Medical Limited
(lTAtlas DETZ BB HZE (KR - ——F
T AZ T HRABITRER) - &t ;IR HE
AR F B Atlas B 49 528D 175 55 P it AR 755 HA R
WATIRE 2 R ([ZERM] - BT X prit)
MAtlastEH T 5K Atlas BMITE ST E R ML E
BN - FHRBNRBHRLEZFHE DA
RAQRAPA-T——F—A=-+HB =%
——FRAZ+—RARZZE——FLtA=++t
BZAMRARGERER -_ZE——F A+
HZ@HAREE -



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Where, “Services” mean the assistance provided by Atlas to the

Company to further develop medical devices business of Titron Group.

(a) Service fee:

(b) Performance bonus:

HK$200,000 in cash per month

The amount equal to 30% of excess of the
pro forma combined profit before tax of
the Titron Group over HK$10 million for
each of the six financial years ending 31

December 2016.

The performance bonus in each year shall
be satisfied 50% in cash and 50% in
performance incentive shares. The amount
of performance bonus that can be paid in
performance incentive shares is subject to a
cap amount for each of the financial years
ended 31 December 2011 to 31 December
2016.

The Company was obliged to pay Atlas for the Services for the year

ended 31 December 2013 to the extent as described below:

(a) Service fee:

(b) Performance bonus:

The amount of service fee for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was
HK$2,400,000, all of which was voluntarily

waived by Atlas.

No performance bonus or performance
incentive shares were earned or payable for

the year ended 31 December 2013.
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EFREWRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms
available from independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with each
of the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole; and (iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped
in accordance with the announcements and circular of the Company as

mentioned above.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions, as set out on pages 40 to 42 of this annual
report in accordance with the Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000,
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740,
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected

transactions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

Interests and short positions of shareholders
discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2013, so far as are known to the Directors, the
shareholders of the Company (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company), who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO, or had otherwise notified the Company were as follows:
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Long positions ¥e
Shares and underlying shares of the Company EREARGREER G
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of the issued
issued ordinary underlying share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
HARQR
HHEERT BRITRAZ
RRES &4 EERYE BEHBERGHA BOBEAE
(Bax1)
Atlas Medical Limited Beneficial owner - 660,000,000 75.36%
(Note 2)
ERBEEA (P7E2)
Lye Khay Fong Beneficial owner 129,000 28,924,920 3.32%
(Note 3)
BREHA EmBEA (PH3E3)
Interest of controlled corporation 31,230,000 660,000,000 78.92%
(Note 4)
REHAB B (PH3E4)
Founder of a discretionary trust 50,000 = 0.01%
2REEZAIZA
Qshare Holding Limited Beneficial owner 218,116,000 - 24.90%
(Note 5)
EnfAA (Pfg5ES5)
ERERERARE
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EFREWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

FERREREMALIAXRATRK
HREHEARGD ZERZRAE (&)

B (&)

Long positions (continued) ¥E
Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued) ARG REEK G (&)
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of the issued
issued ordinary underlying share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
HEARR
BEERT BERITRAZ
BRRES 51 ZERHE EERBRGEA BABAL
(KizET)
Almeco United Group Limited Beneficial owner 145,658,922 - 16.63%
(Note 6)
EREAA (PF3E6)
Integrated Asset Management Beneficial owner 82,086,666 - 9.37%
(Asia) Limited (Note 7)
ERBEA (KI&E7)
Yam Tak Cheung Interest of controlled corporation 82,086,666 - 9.37%
(Note 7)
= RESAT 2B (BE5E7)
Chelin International Limited Beneficial owner 42,000,000 22,324,890 7.34%
(Note 8) (Note 9)
BB ARAT EmBEEA (PftzE8) (PH3E9)
Lai Chiu Fai Interest of controlled corporation 42,000,000 22,324,890 7.34%
(Note 8) (Note 9)
REE XEHAT 2B (Pft5E8) (PH3E9)
Notes: By -

1. The calculation of percentage figures is based on the relevant number of

shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the Company in issue

as at 31 December 2013.

2. These 660,000,000 underlying shares are the maximum number of

shares potentially entitled by Atlas Medical Limited as at 31 December

2013, pursuant to the Performance Incentive Agreement.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Long positions (continued)
Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

These 28,924,920 underlying shares are potentially entitled by Mr. Lye
Khay Fong pursuant to the Convertible Notes as referred to in note 35

to the consolidated financial statements.

These 660,000,000 underlying shares refer to the same parcel of shares
in note 2 above. Atlas Medical Limited was 50% owned by Mr. Lye
Khay Fong and 50% owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin respectively.
Accordingly, Mr. Lye Khay Fong was deemed to be interested in these

660,000,000 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Qshare Holding Limited was 100% owned by Ms. Leung Mei Han, an

Executive Director.

Almeco United Group Limited was 100% directly owned by Mr. Yip Wai

Lun, Alvin, an Executive Director.

These 82,086,666 shares refer to the same parcel of shares. Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited was 100% owned by Mr. Yam Tak
Cheung. Accordingly, Mr. Yam Tak Cheung was deemed to be interested
in these 82,086,666 shares held by Integrated Asset Management
(Asia) Limited by virtue of the SFO. The Company has not received any
updated notice of interests filed by Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited and Mr. Yam Tak Cheung after the completion of the Capital

Reorganisation.

These 42,000,000 shares refer to the same parcel of shares. Chelin
International Limited was 100% owned by Mr. Lai Chiu Fai. Accordingly,
Mr. Lai Chiu Fai was deemed to be interested in these 42,000,000
shares held by Chelin International Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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EFREWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Long positions (continued)
Shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

9. These 22,324,890 underlying shares are potentially issued and allotted
to Chelin International Limited pursuant to the Convertible Notes as
referred to in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Chelin
International Limited was 100% owned by Mr. Lai Chiu Fai. Accordingly,
Mr. Lai Chiu Fai was deemed to be interested in these 22,324,890
underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31

December 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 28% of the Group's
consolidated turnover and aggregate turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 90% of the

Group's consolidated turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 50% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 82% of the
Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any of the

five largest customers or suppliers.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent

Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 32 of this annual

report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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EFREWRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (Chairman), Mr. Leung Ka
Kui, Johnny and Mr. Lau Man Tak. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited results for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

mo 13 E2
¥ 3 A% B R R
Tel : +852 2218 8288 25t Floor Wing On Centre
B DO Fax: +852 2815 2239 111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
E5E : +852 2218 8288 EETHEEPI115E
B : +852 2815 2239 Sk 2518
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BERERERATDRKRR

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFME T ZHRAA)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United ZA#Z 860 (LA TERE[RM)E B TERSE
Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the 52E ZFE163HERLEMARARA ([EAF])
Group”) set out on pages 52 to 163, which comprise the consolidated REMBAR (SRHAIEEE])NEEMEHR
CERAERZZE—=F+_A=1+—HA8%
2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the A RAFMBRAELBEZHILEFENGESD
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated MEHX GAEREBHRNGEAEESRESR
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of AR FE@HBEHREME MM TMREBER -

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

St

and company statements of financial position as at 31 December

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EERGAMBHRRARENSE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of BAFREEZEEERERLGHMASEML
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in (HEFBREER) KEB (R alEH) BH#
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the TR EHRELLZ A MBHRE UL IS EIERKE
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure HEZEmMATHREEREZEHR ARG
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such ¥R FT % B8R ILIEH - LARERER S B 75 3R
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the RATFEHRNEFENERMEBNE NEERR
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from it

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FERERA T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W S 8% B

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan Russell Leong

Practising Certificate Number P03246

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e m il &

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—=fF —ET—_fF
B & FET FET
Continuing operations BEQSEXER
Turnover =t 7 89,006 132,413
Cost of sales $HE XA (75,032) (102,469)
Gross profit EA 13,974 29,944
Other income H b 2= 8 8,906 12
Distribution costs 7 S K R (4,443) (6,881)
Administrative expenses THRAX (48,920) (57,383)
Impairment losses and write offs VEREY R =WSE € 10 (40,981) (25,709)
(Loss)/Gain on change in fair value of AR ZEE 2 AR EEEH
convertible notes (E18) ek 35 (1,597) 4,868
Finance costs PEER 9 (1,693) (634)
Loss before income tax expense MERFAEHRBAXZAEE 11 (74,754) (55,783)
Income tax credit FrisfiE e 12 141 251
Loss for the year from REBECEEB2TEESE
continuing operations (74,613) (55,532)
Discontinued operations ERIELEEK
Operating loss after income HMBRAEHAIRELER
tax expense - (3,619)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR 2 W 33 - 14,501
Profit for the year from REBKIEE S 2 FE &
discontinued operations 13 - 10,882
Loss for the year FEEBR (74,613) (44,650)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A A mWE R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
B & FET FHET
Other comprehensive income HitZEBA
ltems that may be reclassified HernsnosBEzEs A -
subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on REGINEBEEZIEN =58
translation of foreign operations 388 (397)
Reclassification adjustments EREEET B2
for amounts transferred to ek cEC kS
profit or loss
— release of translation reserve NS UNGIE: E SRR
upon deregistration of % b OB 3 (R 1
subsidiaries - 210
— release of translation reserve —RHENB AR R#ER
upon disposal of subsidiaries TE 3 33 - (339)
— release of translation reserve —REEHEEN S EER
upon disposal of available-for- % b BB 3 (1
sale financial assets - 107
Reclassification of the cumulative fair EEFHHBEHEHEEM K EE
value gain attributable to disposal EEEARAABEREEZER
of available-for-sale financial assets
to profit or loss - (32)
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEYA - HRTIE
for the year, net of tax 388 (451)
Total comprehensive income FREZEBALRE
for the year (74,225) (45,101)
Loss for the year attributable to KAREBAERLFEERS:
owners of the Company:
Continuing operations SIS TS (74,613) (55,532)
Discontinued operations BRI SR - 10,882
14 (74,613) (44,650)

EXERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GermlER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—=fF —ET—_fF
B & FET FET
Total comprehensive income AAREBEANELHEZEBALEE:
attributable to owners of
the Company:
Continuing operations SIS TS (74,225) (55,983)
Discontinued operations BRI EET - 10,882
(74,225) (45,101)
(Loss)/Earnings per share BR (EBE) BF 15
From continuing and REFEBELEEBR
discontinued operations BRIEREER
Basic HIK HK(8.52) cents &4l | HK(5.10) cents &1l
Diluted B N/A =& A N/A 7
From continuing operations REFFELE B
Basic HAK HK(8.52) cents &l | HK(6.34) cents &1l
Diluted e N/A FiE A N/A 7~ i@ A
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER
Basic AR - HK1.24 cents 7l
Diluted 8 N/A FEAR N/A i@ A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SAMBKIE

As at 31 December 2013 R=-F—=#F+=-HA=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
By =% FERT FAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E R & 18 6,009 17,576
Goodwill [EES 19 11,836 45,907
Deferred tax assets IR IEE = 27 - 514
17,845 63,997

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 6,952 7,532
Trade and other receivables B RE M EWFKIE 21 13,430 26,839
Tax recoverable CIRqEE 291 813
Pledged time deposits B T HF R 22 3,405 3,512
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkHeZEEY 22 4,576 10,163
28,654 48,859
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 I H th f& 1~ ;R 23 31,513 39,022
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 24 16,064 9,614
Amount due to a director B EERIA 25 12,150 4,000
Obligation under finance leases A A e 26 204 204
Convertible notes IRz €8 35 16,112 10,314
76,043 63,154
Net current liabilities REBEERE (47,389) (14,295)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERBABERE (29,544) 49,702

EXERERAT
2013 £ 95



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR 0%

As at 31 December 2013 R=-F—=#F+=F=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
By =% FET FAET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligation under finance leases BE A e 26 16 220
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 27 - 616
Convertible notes AR R & 35 7.113 11,314
7,129 12,150
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) EBEZE (36,673) 37,552

EQUITY EE

Share capital [N 28 8,758 87,582
Reserves ] (45,431) (50,030)
(Capital deficiency)/Total equity (BEXREH)  HEZBEHE (36,673) 37,552

Leung Mei Han
REM
Director

EF
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56 Annual Report 2013

On behalf of the Board
REREZS

Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
ZEEMR
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Statement of Financial Position

Bt B R I &

As at 31 December 2013 R=-F—=#F+=-HA=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
By =% FERT FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AT ENGIPA £ 32 - =
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIBAFIE 21 604 1,315
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR M B A 7] 2 FUE 32 37,542 79,555
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 22 480 568
38,626 81,438
Current liabilities FREBAE
Other payables E b f& T 518 23 7,766 7,246
Other borrowings HiEE 24 10,000 2,000
Amount due to a director ENESZHRIE 25 12,150 4,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NGIE ] 23 1 14,795
Convertible notes AR R 35 16,112 10,314
46,029 38,355
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (8 BERE (7,403) 43,083
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible notes Al E B 35 7.113 11,314
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) EEZE (14,516) 31,769
EQUITY E=
Share capital AR 28 8,758 87,582
Reserves G 29 (23,274) (55,813)
(Capital deficiency)/Total equity (BEREHM) TEREEH (14,516) 31,769

On behalf of the Board

KREES
Leung Mei Han Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
REM ZEEMR
Director Director
EBxE =2

EXERERAT
2013 £ O7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GOMEREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ - F—=F+_-HA=+—HIFE

Equity/(Capital
deficiency)
Available-for- attributable to Non-
Share Share Capital sale financial Translation Accumulated owners of controlling
capital premium reserve  assets reserve reserve losses ~the Company interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Notes a &c) (Notes b & c) (Note ¢) (Note ) (Note ¢)
FRREEA
TREEHE ERE/
R& RHEE us-1 BERR Eifi% 2itEE (BXE4) FERER b
Thr Tin T ThT TR T Thr T ThL
(Mizkake) (M3EbRe) (Kc) ik (Kzc)
Asat 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-f-H 81,582 223,828 15415 2 1,845 (246,049) 82,653 (1,519 81,134
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (44,650) (44,650) - (44,650)
Other comprehensive income for £ £ 2ERA
the year:
Exchange differences arising BEBNERELEL
on translation of foreign EXEE
operations - - - - (397) - (397) - (397)
Reclassification adjustments for ~ BEZRER 2 8F 2 EH
amounts transferred to profitor %
loss
- telease of translation reserve -REERREEER G
upon deregistration of ERENFE
subsidiaries - - - - 210 - 210 - 210
- telease of translation reserve -NEERBRARER
upon disposal of subsidaries EifE - - - - (339) - (339) - (339)
- release of translation reserve R ETEHEHEE
upon disposal of available- ERBRELGRE
for-sale financial assets - - - - 107 - 107 - 107
Reclassification of the cumulative i ETHLEEHEER
fair value gain attributable to 2 2L REREE
disposal of available-for-sale HABZER
financial assets to profit or loss - - - 32) - - 32) - (32)
- - - (32) #19) - (451) - (451)
Total comprehensive income FE2ANAEE
for the year - - - (32) #19) (44,650 (45,101) - (45,101)
Equity-settled share-based NRAEERNBER RS
transactions
- lapse of options granted to -RIEEZBRERR
employees - - (13,474) - - 13474 - - -
- Disposal of subsidiaries - HEHBAA - - - - - - - 1,519 1519
At 31 December 2012 RZE-2%
+-A=1-8 81,582 223,828 1,941 - 1,426 (277,225) 37,552 - 31,552
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013

GoMREHR
BE-—ZE—=F+=-f=+—HIEE

Equity/(Capital
deficiency)
Available-for- attributable to Non-
Share Share Capital sale financial Translation Accumulated owners of controlling
capital premium reserve  assets reserve reserve losses the Company interests Total
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
(Notes a & ¢) (Notes b & ¢) (Note ¢) (Note ¢) (Note ¢)
FRREEA
AHHERE ERE/
R& RHERE Ui BERE EiGfE RiHR (BAE4) FERER Eh
Tz Thn Tén Tz T Tén Tz T#n T#n
(Kiake) (K&bRe) (W) (Kie) (M)
As at 1 January 2013 RZE-=§-A-H 81,582 23,828 194 - 1,426 (277,225) 31,552 - 31,552
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (74,613) (74,613) - (74,613)
Other comprehensive income for £ £ 2ERA
the year:
Exchange differences arising BEENEREEZER
on translation of foreign R
operations - - - - 388 - 388 - 388
Total comprehensive income FR2ANAEE
for the year - - - - 388 (74,613) (74,225) - (74,225)
Equity-settled share-based WRAEE R AERL
transactions 25
- lapse of options granted to -RTEEZERERN
employees - - (1,940) - - 1,940 - - -
Capital reduction (Note 28) B (28) (78,824) (223,828) - - - 302,652 - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZ%-=F
+-A=t-A 8,758 - 1 - 1814 (47,246) (36,673) - (36,673)
Notes: Bt s -
a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) BN HEEBEREZEAS AL\ —FEREEQT

the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the capital reserve comprises the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors and employees of the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments as further detailed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves with a
total debit balance of HK$45,431,000 (2012: HK$50,030,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

EFEAOEIRE ©

RZE—=FR=-_F——F+=-A=+—8"
BERFERFBREE —TFBRINNEGS M
BHRRWFANUARG BEBRERMENZ G
SHREBERRTALABEEREE ZRITE
BIEZ BRI AFHE 2 AREE:

ZERBEREERGAVBMRARAZER
#h B 48 %8 /545,431,000 L (T — — 4
50,030,000/ 7T ) Z iR & & o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GalleRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
B & FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEZE (B2 HERE
Loss before income tax B P15 456 Al 5 18 (74,754) (55,783)
Profit before income tax from REERIELEEBKZ
discontinued operations FR AT 45 T A& 7 13 - 10,750
Adjustments for: BTFIIEEEL 2 A :
Depreciation for property, ME - BEREEBTE
plant and equipment 18 6,655 6,809
Loss/(Gain) on change in ARBREBEAAEBEEHER
fair value of convertible notes (Wezs) 35 1,597 (4,868)
Impairment loss on property, M BRE R EREEE
plant and equipment 10 5,679
Impairment loss on goodwill AR R EEE 10 34,071 21,455
Impairment loss and write off of B 5 K H fth YR IE R E
trade and other receivables &5 18 R 5 10 1,231 4,254
Interest income FLE WA 8 (39) (97)
Interest expenses s Ffﬁi 9 1,674 615
Finance charges on obligation BA T & IR B IS B
under finance leases 9 19 19
(Gain)/Loss on deregistration of W%@ﬂ%ﬁ(iﬁ%‘fﬂﬁ
subsidiaries (Wez) /B8 8 (4,384) 659
Gain on disposal of property, EEWE BB KR ER
plant and equipment 8 (371) (1,660)
Forfeiture of deposit paid B D REM T 22 ®
for new share subscription 8 (3,740)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i E WA K - (14,501)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & a] it i & B 75 & &= W =
financial assets - (68)
Operating loss before working EEESREAZREER
capital changes (32,362) (32,416)
Decrease in inventories FER L 728 6,261
Decrease in trade and other B 5 K H fth fE UK IE R
receivables 9,880 11,249
Decrease in amount due to FES — I BEE A R FRIB R A
a related company - (2,040)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I H th fE < FUIE R
payables (663) (20,272)
Cash used in operations KEEESHAES (22,417) (37,218)
Hong Kong and PRC tax paid EBEE KRR EBIE (2) (156)
Hong Kong and PRC tax refund REHESRFEFE 562 180
Net cash used in operating MEZKE B2 FEE
activities (21,857) (37,194)
Cash flows from investing activities REREXB 2 RERE
Net cash outflow from disposal of LEMBAAZRE ML FE
subsidiaries 33 - (907)
Proceeds from disposal of LEWME  WERZEMERT
property, plant and equipment 3,621 2,041
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 IR1T1F FUR 107 26
Interest received [=RLE N 39 97
Payment for the purchase of BEME BERZENRK
property, plant and equipment 18 (3,954) (2,667)
Proceeds from disposal of &S Al E IS B E PSR
available-for-sale financial assets - 1,205
Net cash used in investing REREITHZ B2 FE
activities (187) (205)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AR ER
BE-—ZE—=F+=-f=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=F
B & FET FET
Cash flows from financing activities RERMEEFH 2 REHKE
New bank and other borrowings FTESE 2t iRITREMBEE
raised 10,000 4,000
Repayments of bank and BERITREMEES
other borrowings (4,116) (9,031)
Repayments of obligation under BERERE&E
finance leases (204) (387)
Interest paid EAFE (1,674) (615)
Finance charges on obligation MEREREZVHER
under finance leases (19) (19)
Advance from a director BEEAN 8,150 4,000
Deposit received for new share BT R FTUE 2 H2 &
subscription 41 3,740 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETBESL"(FTH)ZHL FEE
financing activities 15,877 (2,052)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESEENRD FE
equivalents (6,167) (39,451)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzRERELEEY
1 January 10,163 49,565
Effect of exchange rate changes on EZXEEHHBR SR BRSEEBEY 2
cash and cash equivalents 14 49
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—-8B2
31 December RERBREZEEY 4,010 10,163
Represented by: A
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 22 4,576 10,163
Bank overdraft RITEX 24 (566) =
4,010 10,163

EXERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

,..;r

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

R E Y

—E-cEt-ASt-ALEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section

to the annual report.

Subsequent to the disposal of the segment of manufacture and sale
of data media products and the segment of distribution of data
media products during the previous year ended 31 December 2012,
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and

sale of medical devices and plastic moulding products.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

62 Annual Report 2013

—REH

SHRERARAR ([ARF])R—ANHE
FAATABREBEBREZE NN\ —F2F
FEAREEMA LA - HERRZERA

A EERMBE-AARFE+—AZ+N\R
ERELEBMERZAMBRAR (TBRM])
IRET - ARBZEMPERRETES
EE A TIRNFR [ ARER] —EHHK

3= o

EBRERBE_ZT——F+-_A=+—H
It FEHERERHERBEREERD
BUARDHBBEBERDFE KD F
REMBAR (M THBAIAERE])E

i

ENERENFEEEREBEREBEAE
2o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M B Wk B A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2013

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and

amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following

new and revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

(Revised)

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial
Statements
Disclosure of Interest in
Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Separate Financial Statements

Except as explain below, the adoption of these new and

revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

2. RMBRMBHRELER ([FE
BMBHREREL])

(a) JREAHET RIETEBHH

BREEAA-R=F—=F—
B—B&EX
BESHMAGER/MGE THIES
S EEARBEBHBHREELZ
B AREARETRNAESEAE
STEAR ERAER - B - TR R4
& 7T B 4 B 7 3 5 E Bl B2 K 2 (3 B 75
HwRAEH

BEMHREEN —FRAFE-T—FB
)

(BATX Rz FENE
BEEMBREEN _—T-THEE-T-_Ff

(BFTX) M2 FENE
BEGHEAR Y EtrmEkaEl 27

(EET) 2 B3]

ERMBREEDN HEEMBEERMBAR
F1H21B3T

BEMBREEN HEMBRE

2103%

EEMBREEDN HpER7RERE
E125%

BARUBREEN SABEHE

F13%
BRI ERFS BUMBHEA
(ZZF——%)

BT SRR S - SRR S AT R
AT BB RS R R A AR E
HBREALEEATE -

ERERERAA
2013 §
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEBBMBEBREED ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) MR EED]) (2

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective (a) BRAFTET RISET BB

1 January 2013 (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions for HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
was amended to clarify that short-term receivables and
payables with no stated interest rate can be measured at
their invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of
discounting is immaterial. This is consistent with the Group's

existing accounting policy.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other
standards. The standard applies to both financial and non-
financial items measured at fair value and introduces a fair
value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three
levels in this measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an
exit price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an
active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances should
be used. It also contains extensive disclosure requirements to
allow users of the financial statements to assess the methods
and inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of fair
value measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 is

applied prospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
therefore has no effect on the Group’s financial position and

performance.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
and have been early adopted

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit
(CGU) to those periods in which an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed, and expand the disclosures where
the recoverable amount of impaired assets or CGUs has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective for annual periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2014. The Group has early adopted the
amendments to HKAS 36 in the current period. The disclosures
about the impairment of property, plant and equipment
in Note 18 and goodwill in Note 19 have been modified

accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G 6 W B Ok I AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32

HKFRS 9

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions

Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities’

Financial Instruments*

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle?

occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

2. RANEABMBEREER ([F8
MEBREER]) #)

() ERMEERERZHET

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding
appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” and when
a gross settlement mechanism is considered equivalent to net

settlement.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be recognised in
profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition, classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets

and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 6 W B oAk W AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

ZE-—=FF A=+ —HULFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 163 have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases are

fully explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis which assumes the realisation of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business
notwithstanding that the Group has incurred a loss of
HK$74,613,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
and as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities of

HK$47,389,000 and a capital deficiency of HK$36,673,000.

Notwithstanding these conditions, the going concern basis has

been adopted on the basis set out below:

(i) A director and a certain related party (further details of
which are set out in Note 23) have undertaken not to
demand repayment of debts due to them at 31 December
2013 of HK$12,150,000 and HK$7,500,000, respectively,
until such time repayment will not affect the Company’s
ability to repay other creditors in the normal course of

business.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

68  Annual Report 2013

3.

mBEE

(a)

(b)

8 6% B

F2EEFIEZFEEMB®REE
RBFEBEREBMBREER
ERGHEN(TEBGH LR K
RRE(UTHABARIEBUEREE
A1) REBRBGHIRERTHRE
N B RRBEEBHER S
BR A AR AR AT R E 2 i
BEEHR -

STEEERBELERR

BBRBRIRIBELRAEERE
HRAREENEZE THBTAK
Sho A EEEZHN T XME < &5
BRI -

MBRRDRFELEEERE &
FREMNEAEEREE T —=
F+Z A=+ BLFEHBEHE
74,613,000 70 MR R Z AAREE
HEH B A (EF5E47,389,000% 7T &
&N 4436,673,0008 0  BEENRE
BHER—REKBREFEZRRE
fifo

DA

BELR DAER ERTRREA -
ARABERATELEEE .

() —BEERETEHEAL CE
—HHBERRME23) B & 7 &
—=F

=

12,150,0007% 7T }7,500,000/%
THEREERMERBTIERE
AR BRERBGBER A EA
REAERZBEN BRI

.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company has signed two shares placing agreements
in March 2014 which will secure a minimum capital
injection of HK$40,000,000 to the Company by April
2014. Further details of these share placements are set
out in Note 42.

As at 31 December 2013, included in the current
liabilities is the current portion of convertible notes
of HK$16,112,000. The convertible notes were issued
pursuant to the acquisition of the Titron Group. Under
the terms of the convertible note agreement, these
notes must be converted into shares of the Company
at the agreed (fixed) conversion price. Accordingly, the
settlement of these convertible notes will not have any

adverse cash flow impact to the Group.

Looking forward, management plans to improve the

Group's financial performance by:

(@) taking steps to reduce discretionary expenses and

administrative costs;

(b) expansion of business in the areas of medical and

health care market sector; and

(c) exploring new business which will provide a growing

and recurring source of income.

The directors are confident these measures will improve
the financial performance of the Group gradually, provide
sufficient liquidity to enable the Group to meet its
commitments and obligations as and when they fall due

and add to shareholders’ value.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a

going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

RBEE )
(c) EEREH LK

B EARKRE ([FE])KZ
ZREMBRAZNEEE BARE
(TAR®E DN ARBRENE AR
ZUeeERRET ([ET]) el
BHRABTTE2N MABELTH AR
AlZER -

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 3.
(c) Functional and presentation currency

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") of which the functional currency
is Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESFHRBE
POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation 4.1 mEEE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date

fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 4.1 mEEHE (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.

4.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHERBE (2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill 43 B8

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised being the excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment loss. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

acquisition.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.

4.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance,
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA M AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHERBE (2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued) A4 NE - -BERSE &)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

4.5 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHERBE (2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leasing (continued) 4.5 HE (#)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.

4.6 Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired.
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace

concerned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
4.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of goods
and services to customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Impairment for loans and receivables

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that loans and

receivables are impaired. Evidence of impairment may include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s

financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.6 BIIE T (%)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment for loans and receivables (continued)

Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and directly
reduces the carrying amount of loans and receivables when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, the carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset. Financial assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. SHHERE (&#)

POLICIES (continued)
4.6 BIIE T H (%)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for

trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M st

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESHHERBE (2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.6 MBEITH (®)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative

is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to

be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, bank and other borrowings, amount due to a
director and obligation under finance leases are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or

loss

Convertible notes that will or may not be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed amount of the
Company’s own equity instruments are accounted as financial
liabilities with embedded derivatives. The conversion option
derivatives embedded in a financial instrument are treated
as separate derivatives. At the date of issue, the conversion
option derivative is recognised at fair value. Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative

component is recognised as liability.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, until extinguished on conversion or
maturity. The conversion option derivative is measured at fair

value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M st

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, FTESHHERBE (2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.6 BT H (#)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible notes (continued)

Convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

However, where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss if it
satisfies the criteria as set out in the initial recognition policy
of “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”
above in accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement”.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the entire designated
convertible notes classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability components in proportion to

the allocation of the proceeds.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEEHBERE 2
POLICIES (continued)

46 BI¥E T H (&)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss for the year.

4.7 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M st

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTBRBE @)

A48 RERREEEY

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term

deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

4.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and

the title is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

4.10 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred

tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 6 W B WAk W R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

ZE-—=FF A=+ —HULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Income taxes (continued)

4.11

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEHME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
41158 (&)

4.11 Foreign currency (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as translation reserve. Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming
part of the Group's net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Employee benefits

4.13

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services

are rendered by the employees.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve with equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking
into accounts the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.13

4.14

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses quality for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits/

accumulated losses).

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Impairment of other assets (continued)

4.15

4.16

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets
is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that can

be reasonably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M B Wk B A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16

4.17

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group

or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.17

4.18

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
chief operating decision-maker i.e. the most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if

they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.19 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group's business that has been disposed
of or is classified as held for sale, which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of

operations of the Group.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon

disposal. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of profit and loss
account, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss for the

discontinued operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
92 Annual Report 2013

4.

SHHEME (2

A9 R IEEEETE

EREXEBRCHELIIAFELE
i A] 7 BT 8 3 ) AN &% [ 56 75 AR K AP
Do AREB BT ETERH LR
Hol -

EBRHERDBRCRIERER
B XBRWRERFTOBR/C KL
BT -

EEBROBRERIELER BN
BREANE-—BEE7 BRER
EREEBZBREENHEE -

FEEHHERMATFAEER
EZEERR

RERAAEE Z TR (1 aE4pmat)
B AR BE AR M EEEEARIRS A
ZEENRBBZEREEED G RRR-

ZEMAEARBRRDENBELRMNE
MKAREEZEBEAREL - BEREER

HEZE A TEMR -

AEr RAEBRRRFEEELETER 25t
et Z R TIMERT A AT AR M AERR (1
ETEFEZHE) ARETHER AR

HIRER (MR ERE RAREMA) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M B Wk B A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making these key estimates and judgements, the directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on the market
condition existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market

and discount rates.

These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and

actual transactions entered in to by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA M R A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review may result in a change
in useful lives and therefore the depreciation expenses in future

years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the trade and other receivables and on management'’s
estimation. A considerable amount of estimation is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these trade and other
receivables. Factors considered include the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and identifies the
slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. In addition, the Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the end of each

reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Fair value measurement of convertible notes
accounted for as a financial liability through
profit or loss

At the balance sheet date, the Group had certain outstanding
convertible notes, the details of which are set out in Note 35.
These convertible notes, which contained an embedded convertible
option derivative, were issued in October 2011 in connection with
the acquisition of the Titron Group (i.e. the present manufacturing
businesses). The Group elected to account for these convertible
notes as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are required to use
their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
to determine the fair value of these convertible notes, which are
not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. The fair value of the
convertible notes is estimated with the assistance of an independent
professional valuer. The independent valuations are based on
various inputs and estimates with reference to quoted market rates
and adjusted for specific features of the instrument. If the inputs
and estimates applied in the model are different, the carrying

amounts of these convertible notes will change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA M R A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurement of convertible notes
accounted for as a financial liability through
profit or loss (continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the

valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities;

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the
lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the
fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between

levels are recognised in the period they occur.

For more detail information in relation to the fair value
measurement and disclosure in respect of the hierarchy of the

convertible notes, please refer to Notes 35 and 38 respectively.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
96 Annual Report 2013

FESHHAH KRG TIEER
EZFERR#)

ARREEZAABEARAE
BEZCHEEE &)

AEAEEMBEEAARBERS R
EAMSABREREABBEREN BEAR
BEERRERZEAZE  SRIREM
ERBERTAER 2BABE ZAIBER
- BB TRAR (TAREEER]) :

- B HERBEXBEZERTS
RIE (REAE)

- B2 B BABEZIBENIINZE
ABE AIREEXRBEARBEESR
B (BMER)REE (AREER)
BHZH8E: &

— R UFNUABRTHBRELAR
BrBEEXABZRARE (TAE
@ ABIR) °

#IRE DEE LGB TIREMRAEZ
BEAREBEAEEEATE ZH ARE
ZREBRBEL - FRBIMIE B ERNE
A HAfE RE R ©

BRABERBEZAREBERBEERZ
BREZE—SFAER T B2 E
3538 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable segments (2012: 2 continuing and
2 discontinued segments). The segments are managed separately
as each business offers different products and services and requires
different business strategies. The following summary describes the

operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

(1) Manufacture and sale of medical devices products; and

(2)  Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products.

6 M B Wk B A

ZE-—ZFL+Z A=t —HULFE

FESHHAH KRG TIEER
EZFERR#)

BB E

REEGFERBEM T4 3FE < G5B
AHEEREXEMRE ReELEM
ZA e eRCREEREEFESAE
E-RSFHEBERERARIRERE 15
REREBR R Z G5 R REARRR
EMEBZBREDT EREFDEEARERK
ARBEMZBR - ZFREERKFMFR

ERERH BERERMTESAMTRILA
EEEINTEMRFEALHBEZERR
EFHEAAE - BEEEMRATIRMA
AR R M EER ERRE R EE A

o

DEWE
AEEREBEERKEFEDLHEUE
RS 2 W T

AEBEBEEMERTRESH (T ——F:
MEFBEEEDBRMEDSRIELED
#R) o R B E B RE TR E M RRE KT
FBLEBRBEITAEMER BitEn a8z
ERTHEDBIET ATRAEEZA
BENHEBZIME

(1) HERHEBREREEM X

2 HERHEZBEAER

B

ERERERAA
2013 §

il

97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 6 W B WAk W R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEIWE (#)
Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference to DEER G (E) 2 BRI ERBEUE
prices charged to external parties for similar products. Central mAINEEA T IWER 2 BREE - BRHR R
revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments ek kA WA A EELEREH TG
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that DHBRBEFEA 29 HBEMNA - I E D
is used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of BlEREE DL
segment performance.
The Group had disposed of subsidiaries which were engaged in the AEBMR-_ZE——FHEXRBSRERBEE
segment of manufacture and sale of data media products and the HEERBEROS RS HBBEEBERD
segment of distribution of data media products in 2012. These two BB AT - ZMIE D S HSEAE &I
segments were considered as discontinued operations. KT o
(a) Business segments (a) ¥%& oI
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z-—=ZFf+=-A=Z+—-HLHF
E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Manufacture  Manufacture
and sale of and sale of Manufacture
medical plastic and sale of Distribution of
devices moulding data media data media
products products Sub-Total products products Sub-Total Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BESEER BRILEEEY
RERHE HERHE RERHE ik
BRERFER YBHEAER Mt HBREER  HBERER It @it
TR TR TER TER TER TER TR
Revenue from external RENDEP Mz
customers 24,684 64,322 89,006 - - - 89,006
Reportable segment revenue  F[3RE A HMRA 24,684 64,322 89,006 - - - 89,006
Reportable segment loss TREBER (6,014) (9,687) (15,701) - - - (15,701)
Interest income FISMA - 38 38 - - - 38
Depreciation ik (1,109) (4,310) (5,419) - - - (5,419)
Gain on disposal of property,  HEME  HE Rk ERS
plant and equipment 1 380 381 - - - 381
Impairment of UTEEZRE
- property, plant and equipment —¥1% + iR k& f& - (5.679) (5.679) - - - (5,679)
~ goodwill g (34,071) - (34,071) - - - (34,071)
Trade receivables write off B 5 MR IEN - (174) (174) - - - (174)
Reportable segment assets ~ FAIHENHEE 18,914 16,554 35,468 - - - 35,468
Addition to non-current assets FEFRHEE 251 1,922 2173 - - - 2173
Reportable segment liabilities A HRENBEE 2,883 11,786 14,669 - - - 14,669
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4B BT R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - F—=#+_-FA=1+—HALFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEEE (2
(a) Business Segments (continued) (a) ¥ oI 2)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BHE_ZTE——F+-A=T—HIF
=
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Manufacture Manufacture
and sale of and sale of Manufacture
medical plastic and sale of  Distribution of
devices moulding data media data media
products products Sub-Total products products Sub-Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RESERH BRIEEEEH
RERHE BERHE REREE 2
ERRBER 2BHAER N HERBER  MEREES Nt 3t
THET T T TiEx THET THET THEx
Revenue from external RENDEP Wz
customers 51,690 80,723 132,413 17,792 7,650 25,442 157,855
Reportable segment revenue AT A HUMA 51,690 80,723 132,413 17,792 7,650 25,442 157,855
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 145 87/ (&) 2,697 (7,422) (4,725) 12,853 (2,095) 10,758 6,033
Interest income FlEBA - 27 27 1 1 2 29
Depreciation ik ] (1.212) (4,843) (6,060) (163) 0} (165) (6,225)
Gain on disposal of property,  HEN%  BRE k& ERS
plant and equipment - 174 174 1,491 (5) 1,486 1,660
Impairment loss on goodwill ~ BEHEEE (21,455) - (21,455) - - - (21,455)
Trade recelvables write off B SR ER - (24) (24) - = = (24)
Reportable segment assets A& HHEE 58,760 31,475 90,235 - - - 90,235
Addition to non-current assets R EJFRBEE 108 960 1,068 = = = 1,068
Reportable segment liabilities "3 A H & & 3,370 15,471 18,841 - - - 18,841
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& 6 W B WAk W R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

o EB R ()
(b) ATRE DU B EE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEZHER
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E2-=F —ET——F
FERT FHET
Revenue W 2=
Reportable segment revenue CIEER 3 ON 89,006 157,855
Loss before income tax expense BRATBHBEXAIREAL
and discontinued operations REEKCEHE
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ARG (BE) & F (15,701) 6,033
Segment profit from discontinued BRI L ETE 2 53
operations - (10,758)
(Loss)/Gain on change in fair value of AR ZEE QA EEE
convertible notes (E1E) /s (1,597) 4,868
Impairment losses and write offs BB B 18 I M SH (40,981) (25,709)
Finance costs W55 (1,693) (634)
Unallocated corporate income RoBEEERA 8,246 78
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEFEMSL (23,028) (29,661)
Consolidated loss before income REFEKEEK
tax expense from continuing RIS BIASREER
operations (74,754) (55,783)
Assets EE
Segment assets of continuing REBELEEB 2 HBEE
operations 35,468 90,235
Deferred tax assets EETIEE E - 514
Pledged time deposits 2R EHTR 3,405 3,512
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEEY 4,576 10,163
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 3,050 8,432
Consolidated total assets REREE 46,499 112,856
Liabilities a&
Segment liabilities of continuing RELCEEB s H»HEE
operations 14,669 18,841
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 16,064 9,614
Amount due to a director JET EE IR 12,150 4,000
Amounts due to related parties FEA B A T 5KIE 9,200 9,200
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIE B - 616
Convertible notes I &5 23,225 21,628
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOMEEEE 7,864 11,405
Consolidated total liabilities LEeERaE 83,172 75,304
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A M IR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment (loss)/profit represents the (loss)/profit
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative expenses, (loss)/gain on change in fair value of
convertible notes, impairment losses and write offs, finance
costs, corporate directors’ emoluments, loss on disposal of
subsidiaries, gain/(loss) on deregistration of subsidiaries,
corporate interest income and income tax credit. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
deferred tax assets, pledged time deposits and cash and cash

equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than bank and other borrowings, amount due to a director,
amounts due to related parties, deferred tax liabilities and

convertible notes.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the non-current assets is based on the physical and

operating location of the assets.

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly located in

the PRC (country of domicile), including Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

DEHRE (2

(c) HEER (&)
TREIAEEREIINT RS 2 Wam

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.
(c) Geographic information (continuea)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

revenue from external customers.

Z D e

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEEEEE BALEEEE &t

—g-=f —F-= —g-=% —F--fF —E-=% —2-C
THT THT TR T TR THT
Asia T

- PRC including Hong Kong —% Bl (BEEE) 238 4,174 - 8,956 238 13,130
- other region —EthitE 39,674 41,104 - 7,514 39,674 48,618
Europe B 10,967 12,229 - - 10,967 12,229
North and South America A3t M 38,127 74,906 - 8,972 38,127 83,878
89,006 132,413 - 25,44 89,006 157,855

TRE AL B RIECE KA E E A

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's non-

current assets other than deferred tax assets. ZIERBEEZ Do
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREEER BALEEEEK i
—B-=f —E-C-F —B-cf§ —E-CF —B-=f T
T FiET TEn FHL T FiHT
Asia oM
- PRC including Hong Kong  —# Bl (BHEEE) 17,845 63,483 - - 17,845 63,483
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEPRE (&)
(c) Geographic information (continued) (c) HEER (&)
Information about major customers FTEEFEN
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REEZHERFEPEREBEBI0%Z
sales of the Group are set out below: BERPWaSEHR T
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ET——fF
FHET FHET
Customer A — manufacture and EPA-RERHEBRREE®
sale of medical devices products 24,685 51,690
Customer B — manufacture and EFPB-RERHELBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 22,992 28,563
Customer C — manufacture and BERFC-HERFEELEBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 17,022 17,518
Customer D — manufacture and EPD-—HERKHELBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products - 17,185
The percentage of total revenue on major customers is set out FERPIEAENRE D LEIIT
below:
The Group
EEH
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
Customer A — manufacture and EPA-RERHERRREER
sale of medical devices products 28% 33%
Customer B — manufacture and EPFB-RERHEELEBEREAER
sale of plastic moulding products 26% 18%
Customer C — manufacture and BPC-8ERHEEBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products 19% 11%
Customer D — manufacture and EFPD-—RERHELBEAER
sale of plastic moulding products - 1%
ERERABRAE

H
il

2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

7. TURNOVER 7. BXE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of WaEE MG ER R BHRE SN
value-added tax, returns, rebates and trade discounts. Revenue BZEEERERFE-RAFERNRE
from the Group's principal activities recognised during the year is as AEBFEXEH 2O BRWRELT
follows:

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FHET FHET
Continuing operations BERSEER
— sales of goods —HEEm 89,006 132,413
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlrz
Analysis of the Group’s other income recognised during the year is RAFERNEBRZAKBEMKEZ 5
as follows: W :
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—_F
FHERT T
Continuing operations BESEER
Exchange gain, net ME W e - F 95 17
Interest income B U A 39 97
Gain/(Loss) on deregistration of subsidiaries [ /&2 & & s flt =
W, (BE) 4,384 (631)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME WER&E2 M
equipment 371 174
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHBEE CHBERE 2 Wa
financial assets - 68
Gain arising from forfeiture of deposit paid 2 Y5t #1012
for new share subscription (Note 41) BeEE W (KMEE41) 3,740 =
Others H A 277 287
8,906 12
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - F—=#+_-FA=1+—HALFE

6 M B Wk B A

FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEH
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FTERT FHT
Continuing operations BHEREER
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFRNEBHEECRITR
wholly repayable within five years Hth {5 EF S 1,674 615
Finance charges on obligation under MEREREZMBEER
finance leases 19 19
1,693 634
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND WRITE OFFS 10. BB /& 18 I 1M 85
The Group
EEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T—_—fF
FHERT FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Impairment loss on property, plant and M BERREREEE
equipment (Note 18) (FI&E18) 5,679 =
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 19) AR ZREERE (MiE19) 34,071 21,455
Trade receivables written off & 5) & Y R I M 8 174 24
Impairment loss on other deposits, Hiize ENRER
prepayments and other receivables H fth & WK 2 R B B B
(Note 21) (HtsE21) 1,057 4,230
40,981 25,709
ERERERAA

2013 £

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4B BT R M st

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

11.LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. HIBRFTEH R XAl & 18
The Group's loss before income tax expense is arrived at after ANE BB AT S B 5 S AT RS 1R 2 HBR T 5
charging: BIE:
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T—=—F
FERT FHET
Continuing operations FFEREET
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEEEMS)
emoluments)
— Contribution to defined — R BURIRGT BB LK
contribution retirement plan 914 1,025
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Fe ITEREMBEF 33,562 37,246
34,476 38,271
Depreciation of property, mE - BERZEITE
plant and equipment
- Owned -B& 6,451 6,440
— Held under finance leases —RREBANRE 204 204
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R & 730 830
Operating lease charges in respect of EAMEZKEHNER
properties 4,132 4,131
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R A X 2 F SR A 52,794 86,756
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT

12. i8R R

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BESEEY BRLEEEHE CH
“g-=% -%--f C-g-=§ -%--f CZB-Zf CZ%-Zf%
TERL THL TR THET TERT THL
Current tax - Hong Kong Tax MERIE-EBHER
~ Tax for the year -AEEHRE - 205 - - - 205
— Over provision in respect of -BREEREAE
prior years (41) (64) - (132) (41) (196)
(41) 14 - (132) (41) 9
Current tax - PRC Enterprise HERE - B
Income Tax gt
— Tax for the year ~AEEHE 2 3 - - 2 3
2 3 - - 2 3
Deferred tax (Note 27) BIEHIR (MaE27) (102) (395) - - (102) (395)
(141) (251) - (132) (141) (383)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profits for both years.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as no estimated
assessable profits were derived by the Group in Hong Kong for the

years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the

EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

BENEH T IRZ M EFE O H R
i M16.5%5TH

REBEZE-_ZE—=FR-_FT—Z-F+=A
ST -BUEFE AEETEREEBN
hETERBORMN B W ERBAEFNEH
TEH B -

REB(PEARKMBEREREHE)
(TEEMREBE]) REEMETEERA
A PEMBRARNZMEFE 2HES
25% °

EXERERAT
2013 3 107
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before income tax expense per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

12. i fEBER (#)

AEEMEHELEGEE2HEBER 2K
SRR AIEBREERIT

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
= “E—_fF
FTER FET
(Loss)/Profit before income tax expense BRFTESHBE XA (FiE) HF
from continuing operations REFELEED (74,754) (55,783)
from discontinued operations REBERIEREET - 10,750
(74,754) (45,033)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to BREBAEER 2ERA
the jurisdictions concerned BMEFTHE2HIE (12,438) (5,840)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBI HAZ 2 g2
for tax purpose 8,329 6,401
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BERMBAZBHBZE
for tax purpose (1,889) (5,197)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREBRZ M E 6,219 4,971
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B AAE M ARER ZTIE
previously not recognised EEZRETE - (120)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAIREREZR 2
differences not recognised mGTE (835) (402)
Over provision in respect of prior years WITFE 2 BERE (41) (196)
Reversal of tax benefit arising from tax BEFERAZVIAEBE
losses recognised in previous years i A 18 ) 2= B B (B E27)
(Note 27) 514 -
Income tax credit FIERER (141) (383)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ-F—=#+=-F=+—HULFE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

B.RECRUEKEEXB 2 FER

A, (F8)

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FAx FAR

Manufacture and sale of BUERHERBELER
data media products - 12,977
Distribution of data media products 7 H BB E R E - (2,095)
- 10,882

The business of manufacture and sale of data media products and
the business of distribution of data media products which were
carried out by Noble Team Holdings Limited (“NTHL") and its

subsidiaries were put into liquidation on 31 December 2012.

These business segments are presented as part of discontinued

operations in accordance with HKFRS 5.

HiNoble Team Holdings Limited ([NTHL |)
REWB R REE 2 88 RiEE BIRER
EREBROHEEBREREREBEN =
T——F+ A=+ —H#ETER

ZEREBDBIRBEREM B RELERNE
SREFNRERIEEERB 2 —8o -

EFRERERAAE
2013 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM 13.RECARIEREXR2FER
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) %U/ B8) &)
The results and cash flows of these segments included in the AGEEEREREBEERERIZD
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the statement HeERBE2RAT

of cash flows are as follows:

(a) Manufacture and sale of data media () RERHEREERER
products
2012
HK$'000
—E——F
FAT
Turnover ] 17,792
Cost of sales & B AR (16,777)
Gross profit EH 1,015
Other revenue H A U A 1,655
Distribution costs VAl =] N (297)
Administrative expenses THAX (5,793)
Finance costs W5 E A (8)
Loss before income tax BrETS B AT E R (3,428)
Income tax credit FriS Fi i % 132
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEN B ARz (H3E33) 16,273
Profit for the year from BRIEEEEE 2 FE & F
discontinued operations 12,977
Net cash used in operating activities REEER 2R FEE (19,263)
Net cash generated from investing activities  E4ABREEH IR G F5HE 1,671
Net cash used in financing activities RAREE RS 2 IREF5E (189)
Net cash outflows We Rk F58 (17,781)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM 13.REE&L
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) A (EE)

(a) Manufacture and sale of data media

(b)

products (continued)

Profit for the year from the discontinued operations includes

(%)

ZE-—ZFftZ A=t —HULFE

REXB o FER

(%)

() RERFEHERBER

ERIEREEXBZFREGENBEAT

the following: BIE
2012
HK$'000
—E—_F
FHET
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses HRARX 2 FE KA 10,736
Depreciation of property, mME - BERZBTE
plant and equipment 163
Distribution of data media products (b) P EBERER
2012
HK$'000
—E——-F
FHET
Turnover LR 7,650
Cost of sales 4B AR (7,551)
Gross profit E=7 99
Other revenue H Ao g A 679
Distribution costs SRR (70)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,031)
Loss before income tax KR P15 B Al B 1R (323)
Income tax expense Fris i f = =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEMNE ARz &S (KH333) (1,772)
Loss for the year from ERIEREXHT 2 FREER
discontinued operations (2,095)
Net cash used in operating activities REEEB 2R FE (6,102)
Net cash generated from investing activities ~ E4£BREEFH 2R S FE =
Net cash generated from financing activities ~ BRREEE 2R & /FE 1
Net cash outflows WEMEFRE (6,101)
ERERABRAE

-
2013 g 11

1
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - F—=F+_-HA=+—HIFE

13.

14.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(b) Distribution of data media products (continued)

Loss for the year from the discontinued operations includes the

13.

MR B A L A R > 4 B
A (EE) (2

(b) PEBBEEEER (&)
RADRIHELER Y FEEROE

following: AT &IE:
2012
HK$'000
—E-—F
FHT
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAEAX ZEEKRAN 7,551

Depreciation of property, ME- BERZBTE

plant and equipment 2

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of NTHL and its
subsidiaries at the date of disposal are disclosed in Note 33 to the

financial statements.

A total profit of HK$14,501,000 arose on the disposal of NTHL and
its subsidiaries at nil consideration, being the carrying amount of
the subsidiary’s net liabilities. No tax charge or credit arose from the

disposal.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$74,613,000 (2012: HK$44,650,000), a loss of
HK$46,285,000 (2012: HK$46,048,000) has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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14.

NTHLEEKRBARNEHERHZEERE
BEREERYBRERWEIZIANIFE -

LA RAE HENTHLEZ E KB A 7 E 454 7
#2%814,501,000/%8 70 - BN P /8 1 R & & F
BMeEEHE - PESHEYEEEAT B
g R

RAREEABRLGEAFERER

REARBHEEARGEEAFERAER
74,613,000/ 7T (ZZF — =4 : 44,650,000
#IT) 0 46,285,000 L (T — =
46,048,000 7T ) Z B R E AR 7] 8 5 ¥
RPRIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HIFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations is based on the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$74,613,000
(2012: HK$44,650,000) and the weighted average of
875,823,986 (2012: 875,823,986) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share has been adjusted
for the share consolidation on 26 March 2013 as set out in

Note 28.

For continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
operations is based on the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$74,613,000 (2012: HK$55,532,000) and
the weighted average of 875,823,986 (2012: 875,823,986)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the calculation of the
basic earnings per share from discontinued operations is based
on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK10,882,000 and the weighted average of 875,823,986

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

5. 8K (&Bi8) &F
(a) BREX (BR) BF

FEREHKIUZBERK

RAFBREEBRERIELEHE
BZEBRER(EEB)/BFTRE
RRABHER ARG ETET4,613,000
BT (ZF — =4 :44,650,000%
TI)RFRABERTLTBRINETS
£875,823,986/R (=T ——F:
875,823,986/% ) 5t & -

AEESREAR (BR) BMMEAZ
TRRNEFOHBERR_-"F—=F
ZAZtARBEFTZROE6 (R
AE28PTHEL) (EHH AR o

RERBREEBRZERERNE
BIRBREBERAAREREAEBHLER
74,613,000 0 (=& — —
55,532,000/ ) R FABE BT E B
B& N4 F 15 £0875,823,986 /% ( = =
— % :875,823,986/% ) 5t & »

BRIUEEXRK

BHE_Z——_HF+-_A=+—HL
FE RABRIELEEB 2 BRE
RBFN TR AR 7B AR F
10,882,000 T M F AR B1TE B
AN4E 15 £1875,823,986 % 5T & o

ERERERAA
2013 §

Hal
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE
15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share has been presented
because there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue

for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The Company’s outstanding share options and outstanding
convertible notes were not taken into account as both had an
anti-dilutive effect for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

16. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2012: five)

directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. 2R (B8) BR 2

(b) BREE (BE) BF

HREBE-T—=FK=_F—=F
T A=+ —HBIEFETHEEETH
BESHELTER R TrE25 8K
e (18) &8

HE-_Z—=ZFfKR-_FT——-F+=
A=+—BLFE KAATWETR
) AR AT 68 2 B AR % i SR AT (56 2 AT 3
BEE RARMELNASREEE
)Eﬁo

16. = = I B

BN ENAER (ZE—Z—F - A%)EF

sEEZHMEWT:

BE-Z2-=f1+-A=1—-HLHEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2K
ExWe BRI BB st
FTERT TR FTExT FExT
Executive Directors HITES
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin R - 5,807 30 5,837
Leung Mei Han 2E - 2,775 15 2,790
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2R 100 - - 100
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason 5k §5 3 100 - - 100
Lau Man Tak 2= 100 - - 100
Total st 300 8,582 45 8,927
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 16. EEHM =)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE - ZTZ——F+_A=+—HIEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e RER
EXHE EMAa RGBT Bt
FHT FHET FHT THT
Executive Directors HITES
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin R - 5,826 28 5,854
Leung Mei Han 2 =1 - 3,600 14 3,614
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2R 5 100 - - 100
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR 4 4 100 = = 100
Lau Man Tak B3 s 100 - - 100
Total #Et 300 9,426 42 9,768
During both years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no REE-_ZT—=Fk=-F——-F+=A
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as an S+ —BLEMEFEA AEBLERE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for EXNEMNME  EAREMAIRMA
loss of office. REE R SRR SRR EE -
No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31 REBEEZT—=F+=-A=+—HBL1F
December 2013 (2012: Nil). B BESEREEANE (ZT—_4F:
') o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - ZE—=#+-F=+—HIFE

17. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 17.EEM &

AEEREESHFALT BEMEARQ
AER(—Z——F MA) RFEFZ

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,

two (2012: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in Note 16 above. The emoluments

of the remaining three individuals (2012: three individuals) were as

B BEN EXHMEI6TE - T =2 A
T (ZE—=—F:ZHAT) ZBE&&HT @M

follows: T:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-=F —E—_F
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments FHehEMiE 4,621 5,740
Retirement scheme contributions IRREF B3R 29 28
4,650 5,768

Their emoluments were within the following bands: EMeRF Iy BER:
2013 2012
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
—E—=F —E—=F
AE A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 078 70 £ 1,000,000/ T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £1,500,000/% 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/8 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001,% 7L £2,500,000/8 7T 1 1

During both years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no REBEE-_ZTE—=FR=_F—Z-F+=A
=+—HIERBEFER A& EX R
EAMEeTHERRFM AL (BEE
=) ERMASIRIMARE B 2 5Bk

TERRERAEE -

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.

B—2FHBNFTHSEEZALIN WA
SREBABZHFMABER LARR &

The remuneration of two senior management personnel have been

disclosed in the above table of the five highest paid individuals

except for one whose remuneration falls within the following band. BFATZERAREE-
2013 2012
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
—g—= —ET——F
A A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 08T % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ-—F—=#1+=-F=+—HULFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE 18. ¥ BERSZRE—XEHEH
GROUP

Leasehold Furniture,
buildings fixtures
at revalued Plant and and office Motor
amounts machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REfR
k) B -KER
HERTF T BARE RE @act
THET THT THET THT THET
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2012 R-—ZE——%—H—H 194 125,899 9,617 2,858 138,568
Exchange adjustment XA - 30 19 4 53
Addition at cost RE (BKAE) - 858 261 1,548 2,667
Disposals HE (194) (22,982) - (1,419) (24,595)
Written off s - (84,111) (5,700) = (89,811)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+-A=1+—"H - 19,694 4,197 2,991 26,882
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H - 19,694 4,197 2,991 26,882
Exchange adjustment ERTIECES - 70 2 = 72
Addition at cost AE (REAE) - 2,044 3 1,907 3,954
Disposals HE = (3,972) 48) = (4,020)
Written off HisH - = (1,136) = (1,136)
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=f%
+=ZA=+—-H - 17,836 3,018 4,898 25,752
ERERERAA
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE 18. ¥ -BERSRE—LEH

GROUP (continued) (&)
Leasehold Furniture,
buildings fixtures
at revalued Plant and and office Motor
amounts machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REfMR
k) BR-#BR
HERT BER#E BRARME AE @t
FAT T TER FHT TET
Accumulated depreciation and R MERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—fF—H = 107,803 7,219 1,499 116,521
Exchange adjustment ERTAEES - - - 1 1
Depreciation e - 4,855 1,360 594 6,809
Elimination on disposals P 5 B - (22,982) - (1,263) (24,245)
Written off ks = (84,091) (5.689) - (89,780)
At 31 December 2012 and R-F—=F
1 January 2013 +ZA=+-HBk
—E-=%—-H—-H = 5,585 2,890 831 9,306
Exchange adjustment ERAEES - 5 5 (1) 9
Depreciation e - 4,465 762 1,428 6,655
Impairment loss mEEE - 5,679 - = 5,679
Elimination on disposals P 5 B - (741) (29) - (770)
Written off A = = (1,136) = (1,136)
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=f§
TEHET= - 14,993 2,492 2,258 19,743
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=f%
+=ZB=+—-H - 2,843 526 2,640 6,009
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—ZF
+-A=+—-H - 14,109 1,307 2,160 17,576
The net carrying value of motor vehicle held under finance leases AEERBEREMERAEZAEZERER
of the Group was approximately HK$305,000 (2012: HK$509,000). FER/HK305,0008T (ZF—ZF:
The asset is pledged to secure the Group's obligation under finance 509,000/ 7T ) ° % F & B B I AR A
leases. SEZBMEREAE-
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18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE
GROUP (continued)

Impairment loss

The Group recorded a segmental loss of HK$9,687,000 (2012:
HK$7,422,000) in the segment of manufacture and sale of plastic
moulding products. As a result, the property, plant and equipment
which relates to this segment, and which also constitutes a cash
generating unit ("CGU"), were then assessed for impairment. The
recoverable amount of this property, plant and equipment was
based on a value in use calculation, using cash flow projection
based on estimates and financial budgets approved by the
management. These projections cover a five-year period, and have
been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 15.51%. The value

in use calculated was below zero.

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their

expectation for market development.

In view of the negative net present value of the future estimated
cash flows of this CGU, the property, plant and equipment relating
to this CGU were written down to zero, with an impairment loss of
HK$5,679,000 recognised in “Impairment Losses and Write Offs” in
the current year (Note 10).

6 M B Wk B A

ZE-—ZFL+Z A=t —HULFE

18.M¥E BERRE—XTKEE

(#)

WEEE
AEBRBERHEBBEEER D
8% 18 o 2B 5 189,687,000/ 7L (= F —
F: 7,422,000/ T) o A I - 62
B ER —BRSELABMU([BeEL
B zWE BERRXEBEHESENT
R E AN BRE REE 2 TR E S
BORBERESNE T ZEREREEMY
B2 R BBEEHAR SR ETEAE
T - ZERARERFHEREFER
15.51% 2 BRI R RMR - EAERESE

WRREBERETRRZ A RR R
(BERBEEMNXR -HBRERERE) T H
AEBEEERBEERE BREEF
LSRR AHMETE -

ERUReELEM 2EFARERESRA

EFERAE WENRSELEMIAEH
2% BB RREFRAFERRE

I TRk (B & 18 I i 88 |+ 7 725,679,000
ST Z R EEE (HFE10) -

GOODWILL 19. 5 &
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—=—F
FiT FHBT
Cost BN 67,362 67,362
Less: Accumulated impairment loss W REHREEE (55,526) (21,455)
Net book value BREFE 11,836 45,907
EREREBRAE

4
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19. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill

All of the goodwill at 31 December 2013 relates to the manufacture
and sale of medical devices products business unit acquired as part
of the acquisition of the Titron Group in 2011. At the year end,
the goodwill relating to this business unit, which is also a CGU, is

subject to impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined using
cash flow projections under various scenarios based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the management. These
projections cover a five-year period, and have been discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate of 18.88%. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a zero growth

rate.

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their

expectation for future market development.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined to be HK$14,863,000. The carrying amount of the CGU
has been reduced to the recoverable amount and accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$34,071,000 (2012: HK$21,455,000) has
been recognised in the current year. This significant impairment
loss is primarily due to the performance of this business segment,
not matching up to management’s expectations in 2013 and the
business unit's expected performance in 2014 and beyond. Much
of the problem arose due to delay of the customer’s production
schedules, which was caused by the recall of one of ultimate

customers’ products.
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19.88 (»)

BEZEERR

R-B-—=F+-RA=+—HZMEHE
BN T -——FRRBZEERHERRE
REEMEBHEL (FREABRESELZ
—ED)BE-RFER B EBEM (TF
RRCELBEN ([ReELEM]))EH
ZEBAEITRERH

ReELEMZAIRESEEREERE
BEEMIEZ B R BHEEFEz&B
BRTREZREeRERAEE %FHE
AR E R F AR R EEA18.88% 2 B ATHT
BREFE - BEAFHRZESRECHE

RERREHY

WRRHEBR R RERR Z B RE MG
(BRBEEMNE FRERIEEEX)IHH
AEBEEERBEERE EREESE
HARKRMGHRRZBRMETE

BTG BeEE B2 o] RE S EE
T /314,863,000 T o RS EEE
MZEEERREERESE  HER
AN 4F JE HE SRR (B 5 1834,071,00078 7T (=
T — 4 121,455,000/ 70) o LI KER
BEENFTEAREEBI B RAEE
BERZT—=—F BB ARILE
BEUR T —MNE RIAEZTBEARBAAR
B-HEFZAREF —BEREFA—
REMEAE BRREFZEERMBE
BIERFTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - E—=#+1+-F=+—HIFE

20.INVENTORIES 20. %8
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EB—=F —E-—F
FHERT FHT
Raw materials R4 R 4,186 3,172
Work in progress E& M 573 274
Finished goods BUAK 2,193 4,086
6,952 7,532
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZ REMERFIE
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ZE—_F —E-= —T——F
TET FET FHET FHET
Trade receivables Z 5 W RIE 10,213 18,059 - =
Other deposits, prepayments and H % & « FE 8 K&
other receivables H fth fE N FR IR 8,504 13,010 5,891 5,545
Less: Impairment loss recognised  J& : L H i & -
on other deposits, TE B K&
prepayments and other H fth fE UL R IE
receivables EERZRMERERE (5,287) (4,230) (5,287) (4,230)
3,217 8,780 604 1,315
Total trade and other receivables B 5 K EH i g Ig
IR 13,430 26,839 604 1,315
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2012: AEESRTHESRRP 2 FHEEHA30
30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The following is an aged ZO0A(ZZTE——-F:30890K) - A A&
analysis of trade receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses) R EBRRE R HIE (N Z5HRE
by invoice date as at the end of the reporting period. BE)REZAHZREDHT -
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E—_F
FHERT FHET
Current BN &R 1 83
1 to 90 days 1290k 10,027 17,731
91 to 180 days 91E180K 59 28
Over 181 days 181K E 126 217
Trade receivables =) ¢ 10,213 18,059
ERERERAH

2013 3
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Hith B KK IR (2

REBEZIREKENS BEHBHRERE
REEEZMAEEFPYAEETENEER

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are

performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customers operate. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. Receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired constitute about 73%

(2012: 55%) of total trade receivables, and relate to a wide range

et FTEEFRER ZBETBNRK
EHEIBERASNZEET TEEREF
CHREEHAREEFEBE R LHR
5o NEBW AR Z S AT A EIER
R 18 R 7 R R (B 80 FE M AR TE (R B 5 FE R
THMBRELN73% (ZE— =% :55% ) ' A&
FENT R RN BT E P A - NRE

of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. K- B EWHIE (MK R REESE)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of REHARZREDTAOT -
accumulated impairment losses) by due date as at the end of the
reporting period.
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ET——F
FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired K@ H AR E 7,452 9,992
Less than 3 months past due mE LR =EA 2,606 7,827
3 to 6 months past due mE=Z @A 67 23
Over 6 months past due B EA 7B A LA & 88 217
2,761 8,067
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 10,213 18,059

AEBZBSRRABEAERREHHE
B EAAREE 42,761,000/ 7T (=& —
% :8,067,000/8 7T ) Z FEYFRIA - AN 5 (8]
7 SR E B A a] R (B A5 48 85 4 o AN SR B R
does not hold any collateral over these balances. M SERIT B E MR-

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,761,000 (2012:
HK$8,067,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for

which the Group has not provided any impairment loss. The Group
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good repayment record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the impairment loss of other
deposits, prepayments and other receivables

21.

6 M B Wk B A

BE-—ZE—=F+=-f=+—HIEE

EZRHEMEWFRIE &)

ERHERBENBEFRERNEERET
BEREFENTCHNBURFEH -HiEE
BXRYEEREY BRFEBKRPERABD
AAREWNE REBELER BEER/L
BV EZFERIELRERE-

Hivize ANREREMER
REAREBREZH

The Group
AEH

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—=fF —T——fF
FTER FHT
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,230 =
Impairment loss recognised (Note 10) BEwRAEREE (ME10) 1,057 4,230
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 5,287 4,230

Included in other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are
refundable earnest monies of approximately HK$5,300,000 paid to
the potential vendors (the “Vendors”) for a possible acquisition of a
company specialised in clinical studies in various areas of pathology
in Germany (the “Investment Project”). A non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding was entered into by the Company
and the Vendors on 28 September 2012 as per the announcement
made by the Company on 2 October 2012. No formal agreement
was entered into by the Company and the Vendors as at 31
December 2012. During the year, the management decided to
abandon the Investment Project as due diligence revealed that
patents of the Vendors had legal title problems. As a result, an
allowance for impairment of HK$1,057,000 (2012: HK$4,230,000)
has been recognised for the year based on an impairment
assessment carried out by the management as at 31 December

2013.

H itz e « FAN FUE R H b K HRIERIE R
Al RE U R B — R B % (R 12 2 B R A
RZARMA(EEBBDEBEEES ([&
77 1) XA AR B 3 2 & 495,300,000/ 7T ©
WMARFRZE——_F+AZBH#EZ
RFT#E - ARRBEBEBAER T —=F
NAZ T NBEI M TEERORN ZFRE
k- R_E——F+-—A=+—8"
RNARIEEFWE L EMNER R EF
N HRERESPEREHETENEE
BERAREE ERERENERESR
B-Ait EREBEEEBR=-Z—=F+=
AZ=+—B &7 2 RETERFEAER
1,057,000/ 7C ( =F — =4 : 4,230,000/5
TC) Z R E R -

SERERERAA
2013 £,
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22.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

2.BERBEEEEYREEHRE

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSIT HA 17 K
The Group The Company
rEE KA F
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ET——F —EB-=F —E-_F
TERT FHET FTHERT FHET
Short-term bank deposits KHRITER 4,922 5,022 - =
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEES 3,059 8,653 480 568
7,981 13,675 480 568
Less: Pledged time deposits B EEATEHTER (3,405) (3,512) - =
4,576 10,163 480 568

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held by
the Group, short-term bank deposits with maturity of three months
or less. The bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 0.35% (2012: 0.001% to 0.39%) per annum.
In 2013, the short-term bank deposits of HK$4,922,000 (2012:
HK$5,022,000) carry interest at fixed rates ranging from 0.30% to
2.10% (2012: 0.20% to 0.60%) per annum.

Amounts of RMB1,208,000 and RMB1,466,000 (2012:
HK$2,002,000 and HK$1,510,000) were deposited as pledged time
deposits at an annual interest rate of 1.62% and 2.10% (2012:
0.20% and 0.60%) respectively as securities for certain banking

facilities granted to the Group.
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Re kB SEBYEEASERAZR
THEBERES RN = @8 5% &2 HR 5
H 2 RHERITIE R RITAEBIE M SR
AT FF0.001EE035E (ZF—=F:
0.001E2Z039F)stE -NZZ—=F 1
HASR1T1E 34,922,000 L (— T ——4&:
5,022,000/ 7T ) 4% [& 7E F & R F § €0.30
EXE210B(=ZZE——%:0.20E £0.60
ED N

REEE S RIREN*E1.62FEK2.10E (=
T——4F:020EZE0.60E) D EIFEH
TRz ERFAARE,208,0007T AR
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23.EZREMENKE

The Group The Company

rEE FNUNE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —E—-—fF
THERT FHET FTHERT FHET
Trade payables B 5 e FIE 6,121 6,247 - =
Accruals and other payables JEET R A I H i B 5 3KIE 16,192 23,575 7,766 7,246
22,313 29,822 7,766 7,246
Amounts due to related parties EEEALHE 9,200 9,200 - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAT BT B A R FRIB - = 1 14,795
31,513 39,022 7,767 22,041

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, included in amounts due to
related parties is an amount due to Titron Group Holdings Limited
("TGHL"), in the amount of HK$1,700,000 (2012: HK$1,700,000).
TGHL was the one of the vendors in the acquisition of the Titron
Group in 2011, further details of which are set out in Note 35.
All of the shareholders of TGHL own shares in the Company, and
include Yip Wai Lun, Alvin the Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company. This amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Included in accruals and other payables is
an aggregate amount of HK$7,500,000 due to TGHL, Yip Wai Lun,
Alvin, Lye Khay Fong the senior management of the Group and
Chelin International Limited. As set out in Note3(b)(i), TGHL, Yip
Wai Lun, Alvin, Lye Khay Fong and Chelin International Limited
have agreed not to demand repayment of this amount until such
time when repayment will not affect the Group’s ability to settle its
obligations as and when they arise.

The remaining balance of amounts due to related parties were also
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

RZE—=FR-_FT——F+-_A=+—
B ENEEATRESE—FEMTitron
Group Holdings Limited ([TGHL ] ) Z 518
1,700,000/ 7T ( =& — =4 : 1,700,000/
TL) c TGHLR —E——FWEEREESE
BREAREFR TS HiE—FFEEH
RMIFE35 o TGHLE ZBARRIGHE B AR AR
D WEREARFEIRRESBLEER
- BENBEAEER 2B WHESZXK
B2 - BT RBE R EMENFIBERE £k
NTGHL & fa AEEESREREAERE
7 REKBEBRERAREEEEA7,500,000
785 7T B9 FRIE o 3B a0 B FE3(b) (i) AT &Y - TGHL »
HEEm BEAREXKBEBEERARER
ETEEREEZERE EE2EERH
RER I gYEAERERTEEARERN
HEFzZ8e W Rk

FENBIEATOBRIMAEER 28 %
AREREREE-

UNTRRBSHRREZERHEINZES
P FRIR Z BR e D47 ©

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
HK$"000 HK$'000
—E—=fF ==
FHET FH&T
Within 3 months =@AR 5,760 6,182
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EABERNEAA 361 65
6,121 6,247

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30-90 days
(2012: 30-90 days).

BEERZFHEEHARI0E0OKR (=T
— 4 :30890K) °

SERERERAA
2013 3
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24.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, |ITRHEMEE
The Group The Company
AEH AR

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T-=F —E-=F —T-=F
FTET FHET FHET FHT

Bank loans and overdraft RITERREX
— trust receipt loans —ERkEER 5,498 7,614 - =
- bank overdraft —RITEX 566 = - =
6,064 7,614 - _

Other borrowings Hiha &
- short term borrowings —-RHEE 10,000 2,000 10,000 2,000
16,064 9,614 10,000 2,000
The Group The Company
rEE ENYNE|

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-=F —ZT—=F —E-=F —E—=F
FEx FHT FER FHET
Secured BHEAE 3,967 3,552 - =
Unsecured 445 4 12,097 6,062 10,000 2,000
16,064 9,614 10,000 2,000

The trust receipt loans borrowed from major banks situated in Hong
Kong were secured by certain assets of the Group, and bore interest

at 5.25% to 6.00% per annum respectively.

On 25 April 2013, the Group obtained a new short-term loan in
the amount of HK$10,000,000. The loan initially bore interest at
48% per annum and was repayable in six months. Subsequent to
the initial agreement date, the Company has agreed a preferential
rate of 18% per annum after discussions with the lender and the
repayment date was extended to one year from the draw down

date. The loan was used for general working capital of the Group.
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2013, total current bank loans and overdraft

6 M B Ok B A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE - E—=#+1+-F=1+—HILFE

24 BT REMBEE (2)

R-ZZE—=F+_A=+—H #HAEKE

which contain a repayment on demand clause and other borrowings KEBERZANBRITERRRITEI R
were scheduled to repay as follows: HEEEMBEENT
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T—_F —E-=fF —E—_F
FTEx FHT FERT FHET
On demand or within one year BRERIN—FR 16,064 9,614 10,000 2,000
The exposure of borrowings to various interest rates changes is as AEENEEHEEELECRRBOT
follows:
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=F —E——F —EB-=F —E-_F
TERT FHET TERT TET
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEEE 10,612 2,625 10,000 2,000
Variable-rate borrowings AENXEE 5,452 6,989 - -
16,064 9,614 10,000 2,000
Banking Facilities RITEE
As at 31 December 2013, the Group's banking facilities are secured RZE—=F+ZA=+—H Xx£EZ
by pledged time deposits (Note 22) and guarantees given by the HRITEE T AE T T B 775 (M 5E22)
Company to a subsidiary with a maximum liability of approximately MAR R A —EH B AR TR 2 ERIE
HK$17,500,000 (2012: HK$18,500,000). HH - MxmAEA17,500,0008 T (==
— =4 :18,500,000/% 7T °
AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 25. BERNEERE

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amount due to a director,

Ms. Leung Mei Han, was denominated in Hong Kong dollars,

unsecured and interest free.

R-E—=k=—F—=—F+=-_HF=+—
B ENEERERLZ T 2 REUB T
B AEEBEEES -

SERERERAA
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26. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group leases the majority of its motor vehicles. Such assets are
generally classified as finance leases as the rental period amounts
to the estimated useful economic life of the assets concerned and
often the Group has the right to purchase the assets outright at the

end of the minimum lease term by paying a nominal amount.

Future lease payments are due as follows:

26. M EHE&AE
AEEEREASBABIURERE -
mRABREEBEEN BT AL
FHIEEET AR E A R RS A E
ERBERSEE Al ZZEE—KRHE
ABMAHE-

AEEENRIPFRAOT

Minimum lease

payments Interest Present Value

2013 2013 2013

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BEAEMR A E BE

—E-=F —E-=fF —E-Z=fF

T FEx T

Not later than one year —FR 223 (19) 204
Later than one year and —FERREN

not later than five years 18 (2) 16

241 (21) 220

Minimum lease

payments Interest Present Value

2012 2012 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SEMERR Fla BE

—T——F —E——F —E-—fF

FHT FET FHT

Not later than one year —FR 223 (19) 204
Later than one year and —FERREN

not later than five years 241 (21) 220

464 (40) 424
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - F—=#+_-_F=1+—HALFE

26. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

27.

(continued)

Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases at

respective contract dates are ranging as follows:

26. M EHE&AIE 2)

FEREHEHETAERBZIANERNEESH
RENF2HBENT :

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—B-=£ —_ET—=
Fixed-rate & 7 ) = 1.9% 1.9%
The present value of future lease payment are analysed as: RS ZHESTOAT
The Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ET——fF
FHERT FHET
Current liabilities e & R 204 204
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 16 220
220 424

The Group’s obligation under finance leases are secured by the

lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

DEFERRED TAX

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

AEETBEREAEALEARLE
A E AR -
27 . EEFIE

TR 2®mM = F 2 REV RS
B

The Group

rEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-=F —E—_fF
FExT FAET
Deferred tax assets BETIEE E - 514
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFIE G E - (616)
- (102)

EXERERAF

2013 3 129
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. ?Eﬁﬁlﬁ (%&

ERAREMFEACHERZEENIER
BER(BE)REBFHFBWOT

Details of the deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised and

movements during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEHERE HEFE oy
FHT FERT FTHERT
At 1 January 2012 RZE——%—f—H 1,011 (514) 497
Credit to profit or loss for the year RERBEZAFTA (395) = (395)
At 31 December 2012 and R_TE——4&
1 January 2013 +ZA=+—HK
—T-=%—-H—H 616 (514) 102
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss REREZREA (5FA) /Hk
for the year (616) 514 (102)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=F
+=B=+-H = - _

RBEBMR AEB2ADAREES
B #4214,060,0008 T (=& — =%
169,374,000 L) - RN BEFERAES
TIEEERRELEHIAEES14,0008 7T

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$214,060,000 (2012: HK$169,374,000). The
deferred tax assets recognised in prior years of HK$514,000 in

respect of unused tax losses have been reversed and no deferred

tax assets in respect of tax losses have been recognised during the
year, as management consider it unlikely that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
foreseeable future with certainly in the relevant tax jurisdiction and

entity.

Tax losses of HK$163,000 (2012: HK$95,000) attributable to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC had an expiry period of five years.
The remaining tax losses of approximately HK$213,897,000 (2012:
HK$169,279,000) will not expire under current tax legislation.
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BERE - MeaREEERRERBHRE A
ARERE R BB N K AT BE B R B AR B0 A
AHBEEEDR REFALERZETE
BRABREVAEE-

= T B A B 4G TR B 15163,000
BIL(ZZT—=%:95,00087L) @M
BEARF - BERITHRZE A THE
6518 49213,897,0008 L (=& — = F:
169,279,000/ 7T ) T & & # °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. i A
Par value Number of
per share shares Amount
HK$ HK$'000
BREME RAEE S8
BT FHT
Authorised: EE
Balance as at 31 December 2012 and RZT—=F
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—AHk
—T—=F
TZRA=t+—Hz&# 0.01  40,000,000,000 400,000
Par value Number of
per share shares Amount
HK$ HK$'000
BREME ROEE k4|
BT FHT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Balance as at 1 January 2012 and RZZE-——F—-A—-BAk
31 December 2012 “E——F+-A=F—
H 2 &% 0.01 8,758,239,861 87,582
Share consolidation of every ten (10) (10K
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each E1E0.01/8 7T 2 & D
into one (1) consolidated share of par EHA—()REREE
value HK$0.1 each; and reduction par ONBTLZAHRNG : k&
value of each consolidated share from BRAGRMEER AT
HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 (Note 29) B8 Z0.0178 7T
(KF#E29) 0.01 (7,882,415,875) (78,824)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%
tT=ZRA=+—-HZ&# 0.01 875,823,986 8,758
SEHEREBRAR
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28.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

Save as disclosed in the Company's circular dated 1 March 2013 in
respect of a proposed capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”)
which was approved by the shareholders of the Company in a special
general meeting of the Company on 25 March 2013, the Capital
Reorganisation has become effective on 26 March 2013 as details

below.

(a) Every ten (10) existing shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one (1)

consolidated share of HK$0.10 each;

(b) The issued share capital was reduced by cancelling of HK$0.09
of the paid-up capital on each issued consolidated share so that
the par value of each issued consolidated share be reduced from

HK$0.10 to HK$0.01;

(c) The entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium

account of the Company was cancelled; and

(d) The credit arising from the share premium account of the
Company was transferred to the contributed surplus account of
the Company to be applied to set off against the accumulated

losses of the Company.
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28. A (#)
Pt o

BRARAIBHA-T—=F=A—BBHEE
ERAEE (TRAEA]) (AERRRRER
TR =F-A-+HBETZARFRR
FrRIRE ) ZBEAREEIN IRAE
HER-_T—=F=A -t B #FHEW
Te

(@) ARRBEETRAFRFT0ORETRE
B0V B T2 BHAROEHAE—(NES
RE{EO0. 108 T 2 A BHAR 1D

(b) BBREREBITEIRN ZHMBIRE
FEH0.09 TTHIUR E BT A - BUe &
REBITE ARG 2 EEH0.10/8 TTHI
WZE0.01VETT

(0 ARAZBMEERZEZHERED T
A &

(d) ARRZBANEERMMES ZHERTE
BERRB ZHARRER  ARREHE
AREZ B ERE-
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29. RESERVES 29. @&
The Company

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)

YN

BB EE EXfifE i B8R b

T THT FET TR
(Fria) (FtzEb)

As at 1 January 2012 N-—E——F—HA—H 223,828 15,415 (249,008) (9,765)

Loss for the year FNE#E - = (46,048) (46,048)

Total comprehensive income FREZHEKRALE

for the year - - (46,048) (46,048)

Equity-settled share-based PARR A 48 B R 1 A

transaction EMsR5

~ lapse of options granted to - RTEEZBRERN
employees - (13,474) 13,474 -

As at 31 December 2012 and RZT—=F

1 January 2013 TZA=T—HRK
—E—=F—H—H 223,828 1,941 (281,582) (55,813)
Loss for the year FREE - = (46,285) (46,285)
Total comprehensive income FAZERALTE
for the year - = (46,285) (46,285)
Equity-settled share-based PARR A 4 E R 10 &
transaction EMsR5
- lapse of options granted to - RTEBEZBRERN
employees - (1,940) 1,940 -

Capital reduction (Note 28) FRASEIRL (BT E28) (223,828) - 302,652 78,824

As at 31 December 2013 R=-B-—=f%

R=H=n—H - 1 (23,275) (23,274)

Notes: B

(a) The application of share premium account is governed by Section (@) BHOEERIZERZ—NAN—FARE
40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. N AR BAOIEIRE -

(b) At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the capital reserve represents by RZE—=FK_FT—Z-—F+=A
fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share =t+—H BEAFEBERBEE-FHE
options granted to directors and employees of the Company YRR E BTSRRI 5E4. 130 LABR 15
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted REW 2 MR 2 & 5t BUR MR %
for share-based payments as further detailed in Note 4.13 to the FTARBIEEZRER ZRITHEBEREZ
consolidated financial statements. BERSAFTEE 2 AR ERE

SERERERA
2013 §
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30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 30. EERIKEF

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000 since June 2012 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012).

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in certain
government retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the relevant
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the

Schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling HK$914,000 (2012: HK$1,109,000). At the

end of the reporting period, there are no forfeited contributions.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 12
June 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, to take up
options at nominal consideration to subscribe for shares of the

Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the scheme, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from its shareholders. Notwithstanding this, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the scheme shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to any individual
who is a substantial shareholder of the Company or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital at the date of grant
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in

advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 per grant of options. Options may
generally be exercised at any time during the period after the
options have been granted, such period to expire not later than 10
years after the date of the grant of the options. The subscription
price for shares will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of options granted,
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of options granted;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised.

1.BRESTE

RRARER-_ZBZWFERA T+ HERH—
EERAERTE Bl AR R ESDERE
ARNERBFAREREEARMAREERH
B RMABEARR RN

RIRZ T B aE R L 2 A B AR P 1T
&R BE 1T 2 IRD AR B BRIEAR A B ER
FERR 2 EHAE T RIS AR AR i
EZTEIE BEBITRDBEZ10% - &
Ew - BB EREEARITEZRE
BARITEBRIENITEEATREET LIRS
ROEE T BBTEEETRMAE
230% o PESR 218 A AR ) 4E fa] A L8
2 BRERITEEERTRETEITZ
B&R 4R 8 - TER B SEBANA R BLE - T
BB MREEBETROBEZ1% - B
BEEEBEL A (8EZA)E12@AH
BmRERABAD R FZRRKE T IEHTT
EEYEMRESECHEAIRLER
RARRBEHE ARARZ20.1% K BEERB
5,000,000/ 7T < FEIRHE - WREREARAR
AR HLAE

REZBREAR SRR ZBRES
TETRIEEE A28 AEE M- B
R BN ERER Z R AT
& FEHARTERNRLBREEBR
105 @i - B RBES T2 EROR LB
g BARBBRMDKTE: (NRERH
BIEE AR AEE XA ZARR R F
BT E: RiiARBRROEE=&EFZ
BimE o AR AW EERAEETEAT AR
BZ&EHIR
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1. BRESTE (2)
15 R B AR M A

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: ARl FEIBI T

Date of grant Exercised period Exercise price

RHB# TREME THREE

2005 25 January 2005 25 January 2005 - 24 January 2015 HK$1.629

(Note a)

—TERF —ETHhF—-A_-t+AH —TTHF-A-t+ABE 1.62978 7T

—RF—HA=Z+mMH (KfzEa)

2010A 29 January 2010 29 January 2010 — 28 January 2012 HK$0.8103

—E-FFA —T-FHF—-HF=-1NH —E-TF-A-_thHE 0.8103& 7T
—E——F—-H=-+/\H

2011 6 May 2011 6 May 2011 — 5 May 2013 HK$2.097

(Note b)

—T——%F —FE——FHAKRH —E——FHEAREE 2.097% T

“T-—=¥HAAA (PFif&ED)

R-F—=FFT-_A=1+—BERERED
ZIRARITEBREES IR F138AHKE

Movements of the outstanding options by category as at 31

December 2013 are disclosed on page 138.

R-ZETRFE-—A-+HAERH BB
ZARBETIRBR D —&F B HEE
BEAFE-R-_Z-—FF—-H_-1TNH
M—ZE-——FHEARNBROZEREZAD
AREEDNFA=ZBAAAREERAFE-

The fair value of share options granted on 25 January 2005 was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of share options granted on 29 January 2010 and 6 May 2011
was calculated using The Trinomial option pricing model. The inputs

into the model were as follows:

ZEAZBABLT:

2011 2010A 2005

—2—-% —2-ZFA —2EREE

Fair value at measurement date Rt BBz AAEBE HK$0.0977%7C  HK$0.271387L  HK$0.096/ 7T
Stock asset price RO EEER HK$0.202/87C  HK$0.750/%8 7L  HK$0.1580/& 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.2034/&7T  HK$0.786/87C  HK$0.15808 7T
Expected volatility TR 18 90.74% 69.80% 72.00%
Expected life SRR 2 years 2 years & 5 years 4F
Risk-free rate & gk ) 0.550% 0.530% 2.801%
Expected dividend yield TR B 0% 0% 0%
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note:

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation (see Note 28), adjustments
were made to the number of ordinary shares to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the subscription rights attaching to all these share
options then outstanding granted under the Share Option Scheme by

the decrease of:

(a) 4,265 ordinary shares to 425 ordinary shares and the exercise
prices of the outstanding options were adjusted from HK$0.1629
per ordinary share to HK$1.629 per ordinary share, effective from

26 March 2013; and

(b) 19,400,000 ordinary shares to 1,940,000 ordinary shares and the
exercise prices of the outstanding options were adjusted from
HK$0.2097 per ordinary share to HK$2.097 per ordinary share,
effective from 26 March 2013.

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous ten years. The expected
life used in the model was adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural consideration.

BRERE (2
B

BARRASAE (R F28) - RITHERIBER
RESHEIR H 2 BT %5 8 R 1T (8 B AR
PRt 2 REBEERAE TRERBETZEBR
2B AR

(a) IEEBARENE 4,265 % =425/ 1E
i 181 A 77 {50 B AR 4 2 17156 18 Al e
B ER0.1629BTTARETR LB
R1.6298 T BT —=F=A=+~
BREED: &

Hﬁ

(b) EEFAES B H19,400,000M % =

1,940,0008% 1 i #8 % - i a1 R IT R BB AR
#ZTEERBEREEAR0.2097# T
HAESRLEER2.0978T BT —=
A+ NHEBER-

]

BHRBEBIDREARGRERNBETFHZ
BERBBEREE - RIBEIEE 2 &K EMET
ZEAPTERZ A FHMERA AT E RN
TTERHINTARRZZEM TIARE-
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees during the year:

31.

BIRAESTE (2

FRNEFREEFAEZANRBREZE
PR TRKE:

Number of share options (after adjustment
for share consolidation effective on 26 March 2013)

BREZE (RS-t BEREBRDEHE)

Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
2013 the year 2013
R=Z-=fF R-B-=fF
—-A-H +=A=1+-H
e K AT 6 REREH e AT 6
2005 —TTRE 425 (127) 298
2011 —T——F 1,940,000 (1,940,000) -
1,940,425 (1,940,127) 298
Exercisable at the end of RBEBRATTHE
the reporting period 298
Weighted average exercise price: MEFGTEE: HK$2.0977 7t HK$2.09738 Tt HK$1.629% 7.
Number of share options (after adjustment
for share consolidation effective on 26 March 2013)
BREHE (R-B-=F=ZA-T A ALBRRBEHE)
Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
2012 the year 2012
R-Z-=f R-ZB-=fF
—-A—H +=-A=t+-H
1 K 47 6 RERXH 1 K 47 B
2005 —TTHE 18,657 (18,232) 425
2010A ZE-TEA 4,808,872 (4,808,872) -
2011 —E——f 1,940,000 = 1,940,000
6,767,529 (4,827,104) 1,940,425
Exercisable at the end of RS BRI
the reporting period 1,940,425
Weighted average exercise price: MEFHITEE: HK$6.36378 T HK$8.07875 & HK$2.097/8 &

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding
at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average exercise price of
HK$1.629 (2012: HK$2.097) (adjusted for the effect of share
consolidation) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of

1.07 year (2012: 0.3 year).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ - F—=#+_-FA=1+—HALFE

31. BB ERE ()

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the R EBR 2 RIE MR ARITEBRE 2 BR

reporting period are as follows:

(after adjustment
for share consolidation effective
on 26 March 2013)
(R=B-=%=RA=tAXH

BARRGANHE)
2013 2012
—E-=% —T-Cf
Exercise price Number of share Number of share
HK$
TEE ROHE D& A
BT
Exercisable period T H
25 January 2005 to 24 January 2015 “ZETRRE-AZTHBEZRE
“Z-RF-A-+mWmA 1.629 298 425
6 May 2011 to 5 May 2013 “T——FHAREZE
—Z-=%¥AAAA 2.097 - 1,940,000
298 1,940,425
No expense has been recognised for the years ended 31 December HE-ZT—=Fk-_"FT—=-F+-_A=+—
2013 and 2012 in relation to share options granted by the AIEFE  WELAARFEL 2 ERERER
Company. X o

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

32. RIfB AR zEm

The Company

AAT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-=F —ET—_F
FHExT FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR - IR 39,172 39,172
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (i) JiE U B BB R R IE (B REG)) 328,060 320,285
367,232 359,457
Less: Impairment loss recognised on W IR E R BEEE

investment (39,172) (39,172)

Less: Impairment loss recognised on A LRI R A B RIERR
amounts due from subsidiaries VRN SEiE] (290,518) (240,730)
(329,690) (279,902)
37,542 79,555

EXERERAT

HI
£

2013
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32.RAMBARIZ2#ERE (&)

Note: B &

()  The amounts due from subsidiaries are in the nature of current () EUEMBARIRIEBERRBHEEEL R
accounts and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on IR R B RARERER-
demand.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARREEWB AR ZFHBHT :

Issued and paid-up share/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiaries Place of incorporation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
KEREEE LA L 3 2 BERTRARKRE ZMER ARAEEREEDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B3
AMCO United Holding Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") US$1 each
AMCO United Holding Limited RERAHS BREEIZETZ REER
([EBEL#HE]) TRERIR
AMCO United Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of sales and
HK$1 each business development
services to the Group

EREEFRAA Bk BREEIETZ REEERMEEE LER

ekl BRRG

AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of

Services Limited HK$1 each management services
to the Group
EREBERBAERAR Bk BREEIETZ RAEERUERRY
TRERIR

Apex Solutions Group Limited BVI 30 ordinary shares of - 100% Investment holding
US$1 each

Apex Solutions Group Limited EBETHS SREEI1ZELLZ REER
Eimk30ik

Golden Passage Limited BVI 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each

Golden Passage Limited RERAHS SREEIETZ REER
@ M%10,0008%

Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each

Energy Best Investments Limited EERAHE SREBIELL BREER
TR
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32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and paid-up share/

registered capital

32.RAMBARIZ2#ERE (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

WEARER REMR AR 4t 36 BERTRARKRE EMES ARABEREE DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE M
Lisheng Guangtai Company Limited  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100% Inactive
HK$10 each
NERFERAF BB BREEI0BTL TEex
TERIR
Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1 each products
EREEERRAF B BREEIBTLZ HEXBRAER
Ei@iR1,0008%
Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Sale of medical devices
HK$1 each
EERRBRAF B BREBIETL HERBRME
L@ x1,0000%
Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1 each products
EEERCEERAR B BREEIETZ HELBEAER
EAR1,000K
Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of — 100% Investment holding
HK$1 each
EEEEERAF EE BREE1ETLLZ RERR
L imAR1,000%
REEHETZERERERAR PRC HK$10,800,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of plastic
moulding products
H 10,800,0007% 7T HEPBEAER
PRC HK$1,200,000 - 100% Inactive
HE 1,200,000% 70 RS
PRC RMB100,000 - 100%  Consultancy Service
e AE#100,0007T R PR 7%

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31

December 2013 which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

ERINER-_ZE—=F+_A=1+—H=E
ERRTEXEREEARAFEEENT
AR E 2 BAID A EFE 2 AR A
BAR -EERREFHEMKERRZ
HEHEBHERARITE

FR BEMNBRARBTEAEERES-
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

—E-cEt-ASt-ALEE

33. GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group commenced the liquidation of NTHL and its subsidiaries

on 31 December 2012, further details of which are set out in the

Company’s announcement of the same day.

NTHL and its subsidiaries were operated under the segment of

manufacture and sale of data media products and the segment of

distribution of data media products, and as further explained in

note 13, constituted two discontinued operations. The net liabilities

of NTHL and its subsidiaries at the date of its deemed disposal were

3BPHEMBARZWE (B

=)

KEBE R
BERARARRABAZA
B0 BT AR 33
AR IR B i K B 6 BUR IE S
SHEUE IR

REWBARZAEFENT

—T——_F+_-_A=+—RH#
FINTHLRENB AR 2 /5% HiE— 05

— Rt - NTHL R E b 8

B

EE BB ko

EmoS (EEEBRMEES KL
KBTS ) 48 o PAEAR A E B HE NTHL

as follows:
Manufacture Distribution
and sale of of data
data media media
products products Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HERHEE DHEE
HERBER BEER st
FHET FHET FHT
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of: FHE (BfE) BEFE:
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH At fE Y 5hIE 761 345 1,106
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEY 733 174 907
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth fE 3R (5,018) (33) (5,051)
Tax payable N (12,643) - (12,643)
(16,167) 486 (15,681)
Non-controlling interest R R 1,519 1,519
Release of translation reserve BEREERBRRERZ
upon disposal of subsidiaries IE 5 G i (106) (233) (339)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal (Note 13) HEWE/ (FE)
(B&E13) 16,273 (1,772) 14,501
Total consideration BRE - = =
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEEZ
BembFE:
Cash consideration ReRE - - -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ~ FTHERERELEEY 733 174 907
733 174 907
The disposed group contributed approximately cash outflow of HE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HIEFE"

HK$25,365,000 in respect of operating activities, cash inflow of

FEESERCEERERERSTH

#725,365,0008 70 M EE B R R
ERAREBEETHERRS KL D5
1,671,000/% 7T % 188,000 T °

HK$1,671,000 in respect of investing activities and cash outflow of
HK$188,000 in respect of financing activities for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

6 M B Wk B A

3. BEAETRS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (Q) BERIAFBBRRFAFR 2T F R bE
in the financial statements, the Group had the following BRAN - N6 B B A TR TE 2 1R
transactions with related parties at agreed terms. FETATRS:

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=F —T——fF

B 5 FHERT FHET
Financial advisory fee paid to BENTFT—HBEARZ

a related company PIEERER (i) 250 300
Service fee paid to BT -—HBEAFZ

a related company AR 7% & (ii) - 200

Notes: Bt 5

(i)  Financial advisory fee paid to a related company, of which
Ms. Leung Mei Han is a director and has beneficial interest,
was made in the ordinary course of business with reference
to the terms negotiated between the Group and the related

company.

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2013, a service fee of
HK$2,400,000 (2012: HK$2,400,000) was charged by Atlas
Medical Limited (“Atlas”), a related company, of which
HK$2,400,000 (2012: HK$2,200,000) was voluntarily
waived by Atlas. Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, a shareholder,
Managing Director and Chairman of the Company is one
of the beneficial owners of Atlas. On 4 March 2011, the
Company, Energy Best Investments Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Performance Incentive
Agreement with Atlas as disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011 and 27
July 2011 respectively and the circular of the Company dated
12 August 2011.

(if)

EfNF—REEAR (K REH
REREFRUHEE EaitEa) 2 M
BERERDNAEEBBET2
EAREE REBE N ERER Z RRIE
$ o

HE-_T—=F+-A=+—H1t
FE - —HA#ERA T Atlas Medical
Limited ([Atlas | ) 1H%2,400,000
B (T ——%:2,400,000
B)Z2RBEE MAtlasB R
112,400,000 7T (=& — — % :
2,200,000 7T) - BEMEEER
—EZRE -ARFNEFREFTLLK
B RAtlasEP —REHEER A
RZE——F=AMA AR 7"
Energy Best Investments Limited
(KRR E—BH B2 A EAtlass]
T BERHNEBHE  EDRRAA
AIESMR-_E——F—HAZ-+H
B Z2——FR~AZ+—HAKk=
T——FtAZ+tEBHZAHRR
ARIBHA=Z——F/N\A+=H
2 38 K A B B o

SERERERAF
2013 £

BE-—ZE—=F+=-f=+—HIEE
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) M BEEALTRF (#)
(b) Compensation of key management (b) TEEE AB ZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERAMFEETRERERFRNZ
management during the year was as follows: FHENAT -
The Group
EEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FHET FHET
Salaries and Short-term FTekRBERERT
employee benefits 12,157 15,466
Post-employment benefits BH B8k 42 A 89 70
12,246 15,536
35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 35. /AR E B
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
—E-= —E——F —E-—= —E——F
TET FHT FTERT FHAT
Current I
Titron CN R E S 16,112 10,314 16,112 10,314
Non-current FENHE
Titron CN AR E S 7,113 11,314 7,113 11,314
23,225 21,628 23,225 21,628
On 23 January 2011, Energy Best Investments Limited (one of the MRZE——F—HZ=+=H Energy Best
subsidiary of the Group) and Lye Khay Fong, Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, Investments Limited ( 242 B E A — KB
TGHL and Chelin International Limited (“the Vendors”) entered NR))ERRET  EE R TGHLR S ok Bl B
into the Sales and Purchases Agreement (“S&P") in relation to the BRAR(IBERDIVERHZ ([EX
acquisition of the Titron Group for HK$120.0 million with HK$7.5 ek ]) - WA ARILA120,000,0005% 7T U B8
million to be paid in cash and the balance of HK$112.5 million =REE E%7,500,0008 T LRSS
by way of convertible notes (“Titron CN"). Titron CN could be 5t if 8 #112,500,0007% 7T LA 7] 30 A% 2 4%
converted into shares of the Company from the date of issue (i.e 10 ([EEHBMARERE]) F XA - EE A%
October 2011) and ending 10 Business Days prior to the maturity BREEAHETHR (I =ZE——F 1A
date, which was 31 December 2015. The Titron Group formed the THR)EBHZEINPBE(ZZE—HF+=A
basis of the Group's present medical device and plastic moulding == EI)HIJ+1%¥EI AT AEBAR
product operating segments set out in Note 6. Az - WA e E Y mEEEE

BRASERBEEREREBRAESR
TEBHHYEE.
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Under the S&P, there was a conversion restriction on HK$40 million
of the Titron CN, which was to be retained by the Vendors for the
purpose of satisfying any claims under the warranties pursuant to
the S&P Agreement. The Vendors undertook to use all reasonable
endeavours to otherwise exercise the conversion rights attaching
to the balance of Titron CN as soon as practicable after the
Completion. The warranty period expired on 30 June 2012. The
Titron CN have a maturity date of 31 December 2015. If the Titron
CN are not converted into shares of the Company by that date, they

are to be redeemed at full face value at 31 December 2015.

The conversion feature in Titron CN meant these convertible notes
constituted a hybrid contract, with a conversion option derivative
embedded into the convertible note. The terms of Titron CN
contained certain anti-dilution clauses which breached the “fixed
for fixed” rule in HKAS32. The Group had opted to classify the
entire Titron CN as a financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss.

At the date of issue, Titron CN was valued by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuer. The fair value of Titron CN was based on the available

observable market data. The major inputs used in the models were

as follows:

Principal amount (HK$'000) 112,500
Coupon rate 0%
Risk free rate 0.1899%
Market price per share HK$0.041

(at date of completion)

5. EAREE &)

RIEEEGZE ERETAREEATER
PR %l - & 140,000,000 JT 2 =& AT 8 1%
ERARBEEREREEERETZE
MEARANMBEESRE B HAHBR
2R ERBEERAIITER TRRITE
BRTEETRREEMM S 2 ERE R
BFHOR T —FAA=-tAER &
BEEEREEZIPEA-ZS—AF
+t-A=t—B-WEREEATRREE
ARZBEERABARARG AR =T
—RFF+ A=+ BRE2EEETUNE
@o

HREERBASEMNFENRRIERR
Q] 25 TREEGES  ERITBRRERZ
ABBBRTZETRREBERRE R
4 W B AT IR RIE B A DT 8
- AEEC K ERREENRRER
DERERBERRANEBEINKLVKE

(==
=]

o

o

RETES ERITRREEHBYEE
{l{EAD7T Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limitedf&i B - B AR ZHE 2 A A BE
TR AT B R T 35 SR T 7 E o IR R AT
REZHAZBRNAT

Re#E (FET) 112,500
BEX 0%
A o b M) = 0.1899%
BRRTISE RS 0.0417% 7T
(R5ERK B H)

ERERER QA

2013 £
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 35.

On 30 December 2011, approximately HK$72,456,000 of Titron
CN (at nominal principal value) was converted into 1,449,123,800
ordinary shares at the conversion rate of HK$0.05 per the S&P. The
market price of the Company’s shares was HK$0.033 per share at

that date.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the remaining Titron CN of

HK$40,000,000 was revalued at fair value using the following major

HERERE 2

R-ZZ——F+=-A=+H" 472,456,000
AT EEARRER (REE214E)E
RIE B & ik 5 8%0.058 T 2 i R i
#/31,449,123,8008% & @ % - A" 12 Al AR 9
Rz Bz mEREAK0.033ET -

RZE—=FR_FT——F+-_A=+—
B # T & {840,000,000% 7T 2 12 f& A #

inputs: BREEDHBTHNEZ@ABEANEE
EXR
2013 2012
—E2-=F —E——F
Principal amount (HK$'000) A& (FHT) 40,000 40,000
Coupon rate BEX 0% 0%
Risk free rate £ [ i ) & 0.3640% 0.0210%
Market price per share BRI ER HK$0.295& T HK$0.027/8 7T
Total
HK$'000
Bt
FHT
Fair value of Titron CN EERAMREREC AAEE
At 1 January 2012 e S i = 26,496
Gain arising on change in fair value NAEEEBEES 2 K (4,868)
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 R-ZE——HF+-_A=+—8BxK
—ET-—=%—H—H 21,628
Loss arising on change in fair value AAEEREHEEZEE 1,597
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZB-—Z=F+=ZA=+—H 23,225
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 5. EAREE &)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—=f —E—_fF
FHERT FHT
Non-current JF BN &8 7,113 11,314
Current BN EA 16,112 10,314
23,225 21,628
Pursuant to the S&P, the conversion cannot trigger a mandatory BIEEE W& Z BB %W ET R
offer obligation under Rule 26 of Takeover Code. If the vendors fully HARZ BFIKBENTE - MEARE
convert the HK$40 million of Titron CN immediately after the expiry BE (R 5% HA JE W 1& 2 2854240,000,0007% 7T
of warranties period, the Vendors will trigger a mandatory offer ZIEER R EIE - B 15 o8t g
obligation as the Vendors shareholding in the Group will exceed ZAEF RAREHRAEE 2 RiE®
the 30% threshold. The current portion of Titron CN accordingly HBiB30% NPR - EE AR EH 2 BN EIEL
represents that amount of Titron CN which can be converted into MABEIEE N B A s B ENRE 2
ordinary shares without triggering the mandatory offer obligation. BATAURBRALBR ZEEMRRER
ZRIE e
36. COMMITMENTS 36. HiE
(a) Capital Commitments (a) EXREE
The Group had the following outstanding capital commitments R-TE—=F+-A=+—8 &%
as at 31 December 2013: BzrAREEERNEENT:
The Group
KEH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for, WRIATEIBZ B 5T 4B KRB
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEVE BELRXE
equipment - 1,611
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36. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating leases — lessee

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasehold

buildings are as follows:

36. F&IE (&)

(b) MERE-—FEA

AEERETAIHECEHERHE
BFIARSERENREELT :

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=5F —ET—=

FHET FHET

Not later than one year —F A 4,052 4,130
Later than one year but —FEERAFR

not later than five years 2,413 912

6,465 5,042

The leases run for an initial period of one to two years (2012:
one to three years), with options to renew the leases and
renegotiate the terms at the expiry dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective lessors. None of the leases

include contingent rentals.

The Company

The Company did not have any capital or operating lease

commitments as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2013 and 2012.
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38.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. RERE P 2 BEER MK
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEME
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of TR T F4.6FTRE 2 HBEE RV H
financial assets and liabilities as defined in Note 4.6: BEZEREABNRAREE:
The Group The Company
rEE /NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=f —T-—F —EB-=F —E--F
FTHERT FHT FET FAT
Financial assets: HEEE:
Loans and receivables ER K EWFIE 12,526 25,507 37,596 80,717
Pledged time deposits EEMTEHER 3,405 3,512 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB&EED 4,576 10,163 480 568
20,507 39,182 38,076 81,285
Financial liabilities: MHERE:
Financial liabilities at fair value FRUBRRERES
through profit or loss of BANBEIEKZ
convertible notes (Note 35) 875 8 f& (H7E35) 23,225 21,628 23,225 21,628
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth FE R 31,513 39,022 7,766 7,246
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 16,064 9,614 10,000 2,000
Obligation under finance leases MEREAE 220 424 - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BB A R FRIB - = 1 14,795
Amount due to a director ENEERIE 12,150 4,000 12,150 4,000
83,172 74,688 53,142 49,669

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Except for convertible notes, all the financial instruments are not
measured at their fair values, as they are short term in nature, it is
considered that their costs or amortised costs approximate their fair

values.

VHRAABEFENUBIA

BAmEERN AR AEMBTAYE
BHME SR OY AR EER
B MERAKCHHRARRASRER
AEEES-

SERERERAF
2013 £
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. REAE D 2 BEERME

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY SEHSE @

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value RAREBETEZHEIA

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TERREEKBOABEERE S RO

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BEIERZ ﬁﬁ% TADH:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—H: REEESEBERNFERMSH
identical assets or liabilities; 2B OCREHARE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level FEoR: BREAE—HJ2HEIN BE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either EaEr B (AERS)KH
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from Z(MEERITE)BRZHA
prices); and g &

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on F=: WHFBRBAEBERDHEESGD

observable market data (unobservable inputs). ZEBEEXBE R AZER
(TAIBRZEABE) -

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the RiZA M BARAKRANE R R BETE 2
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the BEERBGEHIEARAANBEERNT

fair value hierarchy as follows:

As at 31 December 2013
R=ZB-—=%+=B=+—-H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

F-% F-® £ #st

TET TET TER TER

Convertible notes AR EE - 23,225 - 23,225

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE——F+=-R=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

E—R Bk E=H st

FHET TR FHAT FHT
Convertible notes B E 7 - 21,628 - 21,628
There have been no transfers between levels during both years. RRER - & Z R 2 8 -
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value E_RANEBEFEMAZHERTD RE
measurements AEE
The fair value of the convertible notes is based on the fair value MR ERZ ARBETKE2BR®RE
of the shares expected to be converted into, with reference to the RAZBREEBBEASEREATRRER
share price at the end of the reporting period. 2Bz RAREE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own

equity share price.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk and currency risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarter, in close co-operation with the board of directors. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising its

exposure to financial markets.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

6 M B Wk B A

ZE-—ZFL+Z A=t —HULFE

30. KR E R

AEEAZZEE RPES MEREE
RBRTTREEXBBRZAEL -AKH
MASRERS 2 EZEMES 2 RE
[z o

RAEEZ EXEBBEFENB LA
EECIERARALEAR KABESA
B PR AR R SRR -

AEERREETSRIEAE BANE
FEfER T -BERMBAREEBR
SHEBREKERS BTS2 B RALE
REAEB 2PEHRESRE-

ZERRDEARE M BERBRERT
Pk 2 AE I BR il -

() FERR

AEEZEERRIZERANEES
REMEKHIA - ERERBREZ
BEERK MAXZZEEERRT
SETIANBER

RERERA A
2013 3
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0. MEERERE &)
(i) EERR &)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 25% (2012: 22%) and 67% (2012: 40%) of the
total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively

within the 2 continuing business segments.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 21.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has net current liabilities
of HK$47,389,000 and a capital deficiency of HK$36,673,000.
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent upon the
undertaking of a director and a certain related party not
to demand for repayment of debts due to the Company at
31 December 2013 of HK$12,150,000 and HK$7,500,000,
respectively, successful placing of shares subsequent to the
reporting date and the implementation of the measures
for improvement on the Group’s financial performance as

disclosed in Note 3 (b).

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled

repayment dates.

0. MEERERE &)
(i) "BELRAR

AEEZBRIDERERERDES
FRREETHRERLY Z B IARER
Hm ARz Re R NS ERH
EEFULBTRMBRBESTRE
BeAmARNEERREARSE

R-E—=%F+-A=+—H K&
E % B R E A & FE47,389,000%
7L M B N 5 4636,673,0007 7T 0 AN 5
BeRnBEeFTEMAR —RES
RETHEALTAEREER_-Z
—=F+ZA=+—RHEBENLKE
R A ZEH 5 B A12,150,000% 7T K&
7,500,000/ 7T 2 B A - EHE R
HAB R BER & AR » DA R M 5E3(b) At
FHRARNEEM BRI 2SN
E it o

TRETRBEPRAEE 2HBEA
Bz TAMNIEE  HREREER
Reng (BREAAOMERTFELZ
MBS SR 2 Z B A K AR BER
BEBRZERAANEGFE) RBERKA
BERZ&FRABAMSH -

/m]]

s HeErmaRTeEnG
TEZERERZBITERME 9
MRNREBEERZERER (ARE
ARBE H &R AERERER
WENRAR) 2 FHREFAEZRE
mit e Rt E R 2B M A D IR E
BEERH AR -

RERERA A
2013 £,
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3. BRAKRERE (w2
(i) RBESRARE 2

A%

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continuea)

The Group

As at 31 December 2013
R=B-—Z=ZH+=A=+-H

Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than
amount cash flows  or on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRRER —FRH —FlE
BREE ReRBEE RER HEDREE
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTERT
Non-derivative financial FITEMBEERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b R FRIE 31,513 31,513 31,513 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 16,064 16,064 16,064 -
Amount due to a director ENEEHRIEA 12,150 12,150 12,150 -
Obligation under finance MEREAE
leases 220 241 223 18
59,947 59,968 59,950 18
As at 31 December 2012
RZE-—Z—F+=-R=+—H
Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted  Within 1 year or less than
amount cash flows on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARREER —FRN%k —FURE
BREE ReneHEaE REX IR EEF
TET FHT FET FTET
Non-derivative financial FTEMKEEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 RE M ENFRIE 39,022 39,022 39,022 =
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 9,614 9,614 9,614 =
Amount due to a director ENEEHKIA 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Obligation under finance BMEHEAE
leases 424 464 223 241
53,060 53,100 52,859 241
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 30. MERKMERE &)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBESEAR (2)
The Company ARATE

As at 31 December 2013
R-ZB-=F+=-A=1+—-H

Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted one year or
amount cash flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRRER —FRAH
BREE BeRBEE BREX
FET FET FEx
Non-derivative financial FTENKEE
liabilities
Other payables H [l A< R IE 7,766 7,766 7,766
Other borrowings HifgE 10,000 10,000 10,000
Amount due to a director N EERIE 12,150 12,150 12,150
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1< BT BB A R) B 1 1 1
29,917 29,917 29,917
As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—Z—F+=ZR=+—8H
Total contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted cash year or
amount flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHRREEER —FAK
BREE Renelds REK
FHT FHET FHT
Non-derivative financial FTENKEE
liabilities
Other payables H & A< R IE 7,246 7,246 7,246
Other borrowings HifgE 2,000 2,000 2,000
Amount due to a director BN EERIE 4,000 4,000 4,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries LML ENGIE S 14,795 14,795 14,795
28,041 28,041 28,041
SHREREBRAR
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0. MEERERE &)
(IVRERERAAEBENER

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
loans and overdrafts and other borrowings. Bank loans and
overdrafts issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk while bank loan and other borrowings
issued at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value interest

rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exchange exposure should the need arise.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's and
the Company’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 24 to the

financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase the Group’s loss for
the year and accumulated losses by approximately HK$80,000
(2012: HK$48,000). Other components of consolidated equity
would have no impact in response to the general increase/

decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that
date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting

date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M B Wk B A

ZE-—ZFL+Z A=t —HULFE

3. BRAKRERE (&)
(iv) E % =k

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales

and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the operations to which they relate.

The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States

dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB").

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional

currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of

group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,

in either HK$ or US$. Given this, management does not expect

that there will be any significant currency risk associated with

the Group’s borrowings.

AEETREEEEPEZREER
DEEEM NN ZEB S EZHER
BEMAREBER - 3IBULRRZ
ERIZRET(IETRARYE
(TAR¥]) -

BEAREEZEBEDAERERZE
BZYRERE WNEEERZ
WeeER RETT BB T E AT
BE-FERL BEEL A FRREAE
BEBZEEAEEMNERERRER -

uss RMB

xR AR®
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —ET——F —E-=fF —E——F
FEx FHET FER FHT
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H fth & W FRIR 10,234 18,177 344 2,589
Pledged time deposits BT BER - - 3,405 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEED 643 3,802 759 467
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENFKIE (3,150) (4,733) (3,342) (9,698)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (334) (625) - =
Overall net exposure B AERRITE 7,393 16,621 1,166 (6,642)

ERERABRAE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 39. B EBRER &)

(iv) Currency risk (continued) (iviE¥ R &)
Sensitivity analysis B E DT

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group's loss for the year (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances is in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit or loss and other equity where the HK$ strengthens
against the relevant currency. For a weakening of the HK$
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss and other equity, and the

balances below would be negative.

TRETAEB ZFEEE (KRG
BiE) R REREMERN 2 B4
B8 UARBRNBEDRAEE AT
BARE R 2 SMNEE R Z & 187 gt &
B-HFRESNMBEAEESQAFM
2R MR SRR TIARE ARG
FTAZY e B AN 2 EWEHE - A
TESBRRERBTHHEBEEEHEZ
BT Ba R E g 2 e ptiE
THEBERERENS  BEHER
AEMESELRSTZEREE M
UNTHEBREH-

2013
—B-=F

Effect on Effect
Increase in loss for on other
foreign the year and components of
exchange rates accumulated losses equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
FABER H i 5 5B 47
HEEEEFH RitBEz¥E ZEE
FTERT FTET
RMB AR 5% (58) -
Us$ e 5% (370) -

2012

—E-CF

Effect on Effect
Increase in loss for on other
foreign the year and components of
exchange rates accumulated losses equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
FABER HihEwEm
SN FE = F FF R BRI VE B
FiET FAT
RMB ARE 5% 332 -
us$ eV 5% (831) -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to each of the
group entities; exposure to currency risk for both derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,

remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and
the US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the US$ against other currencies. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit
or loss for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

2012.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

30. i AMERE &)

(ivIE¥ER &)
BRE W ()

GBS 57 7 R 2 S BB R B B A 7R
EHRYATEE LB EAEEE
B R AR R A 6T R
FARBTAZ REAR  THHE
fto 22 B 5 5 A T

FEEWA 1EHRE 2 SNEE RS IER]

RREH G- BUtTE BEBEE
TTRXTZMEERTHAIGRARTH
HpERNEEZENESNIEE
REE ERFINTOMZHBRAE
HAEERERBREBYREETE
WHR R E HIR 2 [ KIGE 58 TT A
2IzANFERER BRIV ER
B-AMIDA—T——FZHRE
BT

\

40. EXE P EE

AEBEREATEZEEREBAEE 2
B eMERNBER/RREHRD
A A E A M SR AR R R A

AEBEEBERENRSREEEEAR
B EAERSEEKTAETRZES
BREROFERSEME SARRAER 2
S RREZHER FE ARKEREL
BEHERRBETARE

ERERERAA
2013
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-

to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net

debts as total debt which includes trade and other payables, bank

and other borrowings, amount due to a director, obligation under

finance leases and convertible notes disclosed in Notes 23, 24, 25,

26 and 35 respectively, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted

capital comprises all components of share capital and reserves as

disclosed in Note 28 and the consolidated statement of changes in

equity respectively.

EXERERE 2

AEBRBESFELLARER L K2
HERHBRERE - Bk AEEBER
FHEAEREBLEE BEESHREME
RFIERITREMES  ENESEHIA
BMERERERABRRER (5B RME
23242526 %35AKEE) BB e LE

CEBEY KARBARABERN A B
MRFEE (DRIRM A28 RGAERED
RNIEER) °

bt

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—=F —T——fF
FHERT FHET
Current liabilities nEEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENFKIEA 31,513 39,022
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 16,064 9,614
Amount due to a director JERTEE IR 12,150 4,000
Obligation under finance leases BhE A E AR 204 204
Convertible notes MR ER 16,112 10,314
76,043 63,154

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Obligation under finance leases B A EAE 16 220
Convertible notes MR ER 7,113 11,314
7,129 11,534
Total debt BB 83,172 74,688
Less: Pledged time deposits W BEATEBRER (3,405) (3,512)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY (4,576) (10,163)
Net debt B FEE 75,191 61,013
Adjusted capital BAREXR (36,673) 37,552
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FREHEHABRE R L X N/A 162%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z

41.SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

On 4 February 2013 (as supplement on 5 February 2013), the
Company and Billion Develop International Limited (“Subscriber”)
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Company had conditionally agreed to issue and allot to the
Subscriber, and the Subscriber had conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 170,000,000 shares (“Subscription Shares”, which are new
shares following the completion of the Capital Reorganisation)
at the subscription price of HK$0.22 per share. The Subscriber
is an investment holding company. To the best of the directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) are
third parties independent of the Company and its connected

persons (as defined in the Listing Rules).

The aggregate amount payable for the Subscription Shares
was HK$37,400,000. The subscription price was HK$0.22 per

Subscription Share.

At the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 25
March 2013, the Shareholders had passed the special resolution to
approve the capital reorganization involving the share consolidation,
capital reduction and share premium cancellation, and the ordinary
resolution to approve the subscription agreement dated 4 February
2013 (as supplemented) for the issue are set out, inter alia, in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 February 2013 and in the

circular of the Company dated 1 March 2013.

6 M B Wk B A

ZE-—ZFL+Z A=t —HULFE

1. RBH KD

RZFE—=F_AWA(R=ZT—=F=
ARAKHER) ARREEEEEEREA

A ([REFH I —HRE R Rt
ARAEAEBRERERRBEERRES
BTRELE MARBHE A GRERERE
170,000,000M & 7 ([RIEAR M | - KRR
TRRAELBZFRG) REBELAER
0228 L - RBEH R —EREERLGF K
L — A EBENRE RESHAM BB
RiEE REHFREGKREZEEANR
BIRARRIREBEAT(EER L™
BADZE=R-

PR AR 0 FE T 2 48 % §H 537,400,000
cRIBEASRRBERMD0.22F T

EARRIRZ=ZE—=F=A=-+HBET
ZBRERNAE L REEBBIFRRE
RUABERABE COF RIRGE O - BRAH
R S RRAD B ) - A R R EE DAL
EBHA T =—F_ANBzRERS
(W) MBI ZHBIR (HPE
E)ARARBRA-_T—=4_"AAB2
RERANARIBHA-_T—=6=A—8H
R A ©

RERERA A
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41.

42.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES (continued)

As all the conditions precedent of the subscription agreement had
been fulfilled on 26 March 2013, pursuant to the subscription
agreement, completion of the subscription should have been
taken place on 28 March 2013. However, on 28 March 2013, the
Subscriber failed to proceed to complete the subscription and to pay
the balance of the consideration for the subscription in the sum of
HK$33,660,000. As such the subscription agreement lapsed and the
Company was entitled to forfeit the deposit of HK$3,740,000 paid
by the Subscriber. This has been recognised in “Other Income” in

the current year as set out in Note 8.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on 24 March
2014, the Company and a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into a placing agreement (the “GM Placing Agreement”)
under the general mandate (the “General Mandate”) on the same
date, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to offer for subscription and the Placing Agent has agreed to
procure, as placing agent of the Company, not less than six placees
to subscribe, failing which, the Placing Agent itself will subscribe
for 175,160,000 placing shares (the “GM Placing Shares”) at a
price of HK$0.239 per GM Placing Share (collectively, the “GM
Placing”). The placees and their ultimate beneficial owners shall be
independent third parties. The GM Placing Shares will be allotted
and issued pursuant to the General Mandate granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31
May 2013. The net proceed of approximately of HK$40,300,000,
after deducting commission and placing expenses, will be ultilised
as general working capital of the Group. The GM Placing is
expected to be completed on or before 10 April 2014 subject to

fulfilment of the condition of the GM Placing Agreement.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

162 Annual Report 2013

41.

42.

REHRG 2

HERRBHBEZAAEEREHEER S
—=F=ZA-tBEER RERER
# RESEERN-_ZT—=F=-A=+/N\A
ERARM R-_E—=F=F_-+/\8"
REFAEBREZKRAESTERIARE
FIE 2 TR (833,660,000 7T - ALt - R
BiH@EERM BADRGERKRE
B Xt 2 12 €3,740,0007 JT © o 40 528
FT# sl - th B R ARFE AR [ H U s | P g

7
o

BEBHMREE

BEAARIR-_Z—NE=A=-+HmAKE
B2 Al RRAIRE —RZE([—RE
R ZRERE ([REREITT
—HREH® ([—REERSHE]) &
b ARFBAGEREZIREAERE M
RERRE (FARRAZEERE)ERE
REFDRANBRRANTR—RERER
ERM ([—REREERHD]) 02398 T
ZERE (MWMERAERE  ABRERE
NEREE)175,160,00008 — I EE S A
7 (SR —REEREESEE]) - AEAR
RERKEZMEANERBIE=H—
MEBERERERMERBER-ZT—=FRA
S+—ARTZARARRAFEARE L&
FTESFZ MEERERET -MENRE
Y 88 4940,300,00058 7T (1R A & RELE
MY &) BIEAREER Y —REEES -
—MREEREHE  GREEERE B
—MEEREEEBER-_T—NFEMNA+
B2 AT °



42.

43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(continued)

A second placing agreement has also been entered into with the
Placing Agent on 24 March 2014 pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent, on a
best endeavour basis, up to 175,160,000 placing shares (the “SM
Placing Shares”) under a specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”),
to not less than six placees who and whose beneficial owners are
independent third parties at a placing price of HK$0.239 per SM
Placing Shares by 30 June 2014 or such other date as the parties
may agree in writing (collectively, the “SM Placing”). The SM Placing
Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the Specific Mandate
be obtained at the special general meeting of the Company.
Assuming the SM Placing Shares have been placed successfully, the
maximum net proceed of approximately of HK$40,100,000, after
deducting commission and other expenses of the SM Placing, will be
used for the development and marketing of medical or healthcare

related products.

The GM Placing and the SM Placing are not inter-conditional. Details
of the GM Placing and the SM Placing are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 March 2014.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 27 March 2014.

42.

43.

6 M B Wk B A

BE-—ZE—=F+=-f=+—HIEE

WEBHESE 2

MR_ZE—ME=A-+mBE AAFER
ERENTLE _MREHHE B AAQ
RIERBERIRRE ([FFRIRE]) BiEHER
EERRMERERZBHNEE RN
FRA=THAIS MRS T AIEEHEHE
B E fth B BAA G R R AE B &S AR 19 ([ 45
RIRIERRE RN 1)0.2398 T2 B EEER
%175,160,0008% %5 Bl i # Fo & i fn T A~ >
RABERREAN (BIEEHEAALRE
NE=F) (5B [ FRREREEE]) -
R R RS R SRR AE R AR AR R
FRIRE EIE 2RI % KT
BEREREERERNDEXINEE 15
FRIEF BB & = £ A40,100,00078 7T (1B
FRREREEFE Ae RAMALE) -
HERERE REERENREEBER-

—RIRERE FRERRRERLE FHYL
FERGHE - AR RRELESARE
MEEREERZABCEHINARAA
HR-_Z—NF=A-tMBZAMRA-

1t A B RS 3R R

MBRREN-_F-—NF=A_F+LHE
EFEeMENRRETE-

ERERERAE

-
2013 £ 16

3



Financial Summary

Bt o =

1. RESULTS 1. ¥4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+-ALEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
—B-=F —E-——F —T——F —T-TF —TThEF
FHT F#ET F#T FHET FET
(23)) (&%)
Turnover BER 89,006 157,855 125,955 169,925 221,394
(Loss)/profit before taxation i@l (E518) /& F (74,754) (55,783) 1,095 (108,583) (276,104)
Income tax credit/(expenses)  FTi5Fii& %, (F) 141 251 (197) (554) (1,933)
Profit/(loss) for the year from B R IHEE %2
discontinued operations FEEHEF, (FE) - 10,882 (82,384) (274,774) =
Loss for the year AEFEEE (74,613) (44,650) (81,486) (383,911) (278,037)
Non-controlling interests FEE R o - = 976 543 34
Loss for the year attributable A2 AIHA A
to owners of the Company R AEE B (74,613) (44,650) (80,510) (383,368) (278,003)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EERERE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F 2= —T——F —T-TF ZTENF
FHT FET F#T F#T F#ET
Assets BE
Property, plant and M- HE REE
equipment 6,009 17,576 22,047 23,395 71,726
Goodwill [EES 11,836 45,907 67,362 = =
Other assets HpEE 28,654 49,373 113,381 118,161 320,057
Total assets BERRE 46,499 112,856 202,790 141,556 391,783
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities mEaE 76,043 63,154 106,369 89,715 161,728
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 7,129 12,150 15,287 183,999 244,959
Total liabilities BEBE 83,172 75,304 121,656 273,714 406,687
Total assets less total liabilities & & 42 %8
BELTE (36,673) 37,552 81,134 (132,158) (14,904)
Non-controlling interests IR - - 1,519 543 =
(Capital deficiency)/equity A2 THEE AEN
attributable to (BAREL) RE
owners of the Company (36,673) 37,552 82,653 (131,615) (14,904)
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